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VISION
While we continue to serve our corporate purpose of providing value to our 
shareholders, we also recognize our responsibility to other stakeholders. 
We believe that the development of our employees, the protection of our 
environment and dealing fairly with our suppliers is essential for the future 
success of our company, our community and our country.

MISSION
Mitchell’s strives to continue to win the hearts and minds of our consumers 
by delighting them with healthy and delicious products for every occasion, 
as it has been doing for generations.

VISION, MISSION 
AND VALUES
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VALUES
We are COMMITED towards bringing success to our people 
and partners by consistently delivering on expectations of our 
shareholders, going the extra mile to get the job done and 
approaching everything with a “can do attitude”.

We are open to ideas that challenge the conventional view and drive 
INNOVATION in order to stay relevant and continuously improve, so 
that we can cater to the changing needs of our consumers. 

INTEGRITY: We are honest, ethical and fair in all our activities. 
We keep our word, deliver on our promises and acknowledge our 
mistakes. In all that we do, we believe that our reputation is more 
important than any other short-term rewards.



08

Notice is hereby given that the 91st Annual General Meeting of Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited will be held on 
November 15, 2023, on Wednesday at 11:00 a.m. at the Registered Office of the Company at 72 – FCC, 
Gulberg IV, Lahore to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on December 2, 2022.  
2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the period ended 

June 30, 2023, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ reports thereon.
3. To appoint auditors for the year ending June 30, 2024, and to fix their remuneration as suggested by 

the audit committee to the Board of Directors. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. To Consider and, If deemed fit, pass a special resolution under Section 199 of the Companies Act, 

2017, with or without modification, as recommended by the Directors:

 TO RESOVE that, in view of the PUCARS notification vide S.R.O. 389/(1)/2023 which details and 
confirms that there is no longer a need to issue/compose CDs/DVDs etc. to circulate the Annual 
Financial Statements among the shareholders. We hereby resolve to transmit the same through a QR 
code/web link instead as recommended by the Notification for the ease of business.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. To transact any other business which may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the chair.                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

                                                                                                                                                         
              
 BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

LAHORE  Anum Ali
October 24, 2023 (Company Secretary)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL 
GENERAL MEETING
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NOTES

1. The share transfer book of the Company will 
remain closed from 2023-11-09 to 2023-11-
15(both days inclusive). Transfers received in or-
der (including deposit requests under CDS) at our 
Registrar’s office Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings 
Arcade, 1-K (Commercial) Model Town, Lahore up 
to 01:00 p.m. on 8th November, 2023 will be con-
sidered in time.

2. The Individual Members who have not yet sub-
mitted a photocopy of their valid Computerized 
National Identity Card (CNIC) to the Company / 
Share Registrar, are once again reminded to send 
the same at the earliest directly to Company’s 
Share Registrar, M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, 
Wings Arcade, 1-K (Commercial), Model Town, 
Lahore. The Corporate Entities are requested to 
provide their National Tax Number (NTN). Please 
give Folio Number with the copy of CNIC and NTN 
details. Reference is also made to the Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
Notifications SRO 779 (I) dated August 18, 2011, 
and SRO 831 (I) 2012 dated July 05, 2012, which 
mandates that the dividend warrants should bear 
CNIC number of the registered member or the au-
thorized person, except in case of minor(s) and 
corporate members. 

3. A member eligible to attend and vote at this 
meeting may appoint another member as his/her 
proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her. Prox-
ies, in order to be effective, must be received by 
the Company at the Registered Office (72 - FCC, 
Gulberg IV, Lahore) not later than 48 hours before 
the time meeting is scheduled. The proxy form is 
placed on the Company’s website – http://www.
mitchells.com.pk.

4. Duly completed instrument of the proxy, and the 
other authority under which it is signed, or notari-
ally a certified copy thereof, must be lodged with 
the Company Secretary at the Company’s Regis-
tered Office (72 - FCC, Gulberg IV, Lahore) at least 
48 hours before the time of the meeting. 

5. Shareholders are requested to immediately noti-
fy the change in their address, if any directly to 
Company’s Share Registrar, M/s Corplink (Private) 
Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K (Commercial), Model 
Town, Lahore.

6. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow 
the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down by 
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pa-
kistan: 

A. For Attending the Meeting: 
i) In the case of individuals, the account holder or 

sub-account holder and/or the person whose se-
curities are in a group account and their registra-
tion details are uploaded as per the Regulations, 

shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/
her original Computerized National Identity Card 
(CNIC) or original passport at the time of attending 
the meeting. 

ii) In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Di-
rectors’ resolution/power of attorney with speci-
men signature of the nominee shall be produced 
(unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of 
the meeting. 

B. For Appointing Proxies: 
i) In the case of individuals, the account holder or 

sub-account holder and/or the person whose se-
curities are in a group account and their registra-
tion details are uploaded as per the Regulations, 
shall submit the proxy form accordingly.

ii) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons 
whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers 
shall be mentioned on the form. 

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the 
beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished 
with the proxy form. 

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC at 
the time of the meeting. 

v) In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Di-
rectors’ resolution/power of attorney with spec-
imen signature of the person nominated to rep-
resent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, 
shall be submitted along with proxy form to the 
Company. 

7. Intimation of Changes of Address and declaration 
for non-deduction of Zakat:
(a) Members who hold shares certificates 

should notify any changes in their registered 
address and provide their declarations for 
non-deduction of zakat, if applicable to the 
Share Registrar.

(b) Members who hold shares in CDC/partici-
pant accounts should update their address 
and submit their declarations for non-de-
duction of zakat, if applicable, to the CDC or 
their respective participants/stockbrokers.

8. Unclaimed Dividends and Shares Certificates:
(a) Shareholders, who by any reason, could not 

claim their dividend or bonus shares or did 
not collect their physical shares, are advised 
to contact our Share Registrar M/S Corplink 
(Private) Limited, 1-K Commercial, Model 
Town, Lahore to collect/enquire about their 
unclaimed dividend or pending shares, if any. 

(b) Please note that in compliance with Section 
244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having 
completed the stipulated procedure, all div-
idends unclaimed for a period of three years 
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from the date due and payable shall be de-
posited to the credit of the Federal Govern-
ment (as and when the account is designated 
by the Federal Government) and in case of 
shares, shall be delivered to the Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

9. Circulate Annual Reports to shareholders via 
e-mail:

(a) Pursuant to Notification vide 
S.R.O.787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 
2014, has allowed companies to circulate 
Annual Financial Statements to sharehold-
ers along with notice of Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) through email. In this re-
spect, members are hereby requested to 
convey their consent via e-mail on a stan-
dard request form. Further, it is the respon-
sibility of the members to timely update the 
Company’s Shares Registrar of any change 
in their registered e-mail addresses.

(b) The standard request form is as below:
 I/We, _________________ of _____ being a 

member of Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited, 
holder of _____________ Ordinary shares 
as per Registered Folio No./CDC Ac-
count No.___________________ and email 
id_______________ hereby give my consent 
for circulation of Annual Financial State-
ments along with notice of Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) through email. 

 ____________________
 Signature of member

10. Circulate Annual Audited Accounts and Notice of 
AGM to shareholders through CD or DVD or USB:

(a) In pursuance of SECP notification S.R.O. 
No.470(1)/2016 dated May 31, 2016 the 
companies have been allowed to circulate 
their annual reports including annual audit-
ed financial statements, auditor’s report and 
directors report, a notice of annual general 
meetings, and other information contained 
therein of the Company to the members for 
future years through CD or DVD or USB in-
stead of transmitting the same in hard cop-
ies. However, the Company will supply the 
hard copy of the Annual Audited Accounts 
to the shareholders on demand at their reg-
istered addresses, free of cost, within one 
week of such demand.

(b) To proceed toward a paperless environment 
and to fulfill the responsibility toward the en-
vironment, Company has already passed a 
resolution with the consent of its sharehold-
er, therefore, accounts are circulated in soft 
copies instead of the printed copy.

11. Consent for Video Conference:

(a) Pursuant to SECP’s Circular No 10 dated 
May 21, 2014, if the Company receives 
consent from members holding in aggre-
gate 10% or more shareholding residing at 
a geographical location, to participate in the 
meeting through video conference at least 
10 days prior to the date of the meeting, the 
Company will arrange video conference fa-
cility in that city subject to availability of such 
facility in that city. In this regard, please fill 
out the following and submit to the regis-
tered address of the Company at least 10 
days before the date of AGM.

(b) Consent Form for Video Conference Facility 
is as below:

 I/We, _________________ of _____ be-
ing a member of Mitchell’s Fruit Farms 
Limited, holder of _____________ Ordi-
nary shares as per Registered Folio No./
CDC Account No.___________________ 
hereby opt for video conference facility at 
________________________ (geographical 
location).

  ____________________
  Signature of member

12. Replacing physical shares into book entry form:

 The SECP through its letter No. CSD/ED/
Misc/2016 - 639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has 
advised listed companies to adhere to provisions 
of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 by re-
placing physical shares issued by them into the 
book entry form. The shareholders of Mitchells 
having physical folios/share certificates are re-
quested to convert their shares from the physical 
form into book-entry form as soon as possible. 
The shareholders may contact their Broker, CDC 
Participant or CDC Investor Account Service 
Provider for assistance in opening a CDS Ac-
count and subsequent conversion of the physical 
shares into book-entry form. It would facilitate the 
shareholders in many ways including safe custo-
dy of shares, avoidance of formalities required for 
the issuance of duplicate shares, etc. For further 
information and assistance, the shareholders 
may contact our Share Registrar, M/s. Corplink 
(Private) Limited.

13. Annual Accounts:

 Annual Accounts of the Company for the period 
ended June 30, 2023 have been placed on the 
Company’s website – http://www.mitchells.com.
pk in addition to annual and quarterly financial 
statements for the current and prior periods.



11



12



13



14

Whilst the Company has recorded another net loss for the year, this was entirely a function of 
a very poor first quarter. The last nine months have remained difficult but were profitable; whilst 
macroeconomic stresses have continued to be a strong headwind, many company specific 
issues were tackled head-on.

The turnaround that started in the second quarter was driven by increased active sponsor 
involvement, In October 2022, Mr Najam Sethi assumed the role of CEO, and I became 
Chairman of the Board. In addition to initiating significant management changes, additional 
monies were made available to the Company to ensure smooth operations. There was an 
unremitting focus on appropriate and dynamic pricing strategies in the face of an increasingly 
inflationary environment, and on cost controls. SAP was rolled out successfully, giving us much 
better information on which to base decisions.

In addition to continuing the strategy of focusing on profitability in our core local business, 
the Company under the guidance of the Board, is keen to expand export sales and its B2B 
business, especially utilizing the excess pulping capacity available. 

I would like to thank the Board for its valuable inputs in effecting the turnaround of the last nine 
months. We had healthy debate, but generally were able to find consensus. There were five 
board meetings during the course of the year. The Audit Committee, under the leadership of 
Mr Rizwan Bashir continued to play an effective role in identifying key control issues which the 
Board was subsequently able to address. The Company continues to have an Annual Board 
Performance Evaluation Mechanism and monitors individual board member performance.

We promised last year that performance would improve gradually but slowly; for the coming year 
we want to build on the positive last nine months to achieve less volatility and more predictability 
in our business and financial outcomes and to continue to focus on the bottom line.

Shazad Ghaffar   
Chairman
October 10, 2023

CHAIRMAN’S 
REVIEW
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The directors are pleased to present their report on the Company’s performance during the year.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY
The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of various grocery and confectionery products.
FINANCIAL POSITION AT A GLANCE
A brief financial analysis is presented as under:

Operating Results 2022-23  2021-22  Inc/(Dec) 
Turnover - Gross PKR '000 3,704,244 3,461,598 7%
Turnover - Net PKR '000 2,724,931 2,489,291 9%
Gross Profit PKR '000 648,116 193,820 234%
Gross Profit % % Age 23.78% 7.79% 205%
Marketing & Distribution Costs PKR '000 444,879 546,250 -19%
Administrative & General Expenses PKR '000 187,798 227,878 -18%
Operating Profit/(Loss) PKR '000 15,439 (580,308) 595,747
(Loss) After Tax PKR '000 (59,197) (621,977) 562,780
(Loss) Per Share-Rupees PKR (2.59) (27.19) 24.60

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DEVELOPMENTS
The year 2022-2023 was again a difficult year. Pakistan’s economy is currently under severe stress with low 
foreign reserves, a depreciating currency, and high inflation. There are strong pressures on domestic prices, 
the exchange rate, and foreign reserves. Economic activity has fallen with policy tightening, flood impacts, 
import controls, high borrowing and fuel costs, low confidence, and protracted policy and political uncertainty. 
Similarly, dwindling foreign reserves, import restrictions, flood impacts, high fuel costs, policy uncertainty, and 
the slowdown in domestic and global demand have greatly affected the industry and service sector activity.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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Despite this negative backdrop, the company started 
its upward journey from the second quarter to 
recover from last year’s losses, mainly concentrating 
upon doing profitable business instead of focusing 
upon expanding volumes. We still have a long way 
to go but we now have better visibility in terms of 
product profitability while we have also focused 
upon optimizing costs and make the company lean 
and more efficient to attain targets and maintain 
sustainable operations. 

As a result of measures taken by the management, 
we have been able to drastically reduce the losses 
when compared to the previous year. The main 
reasons for this year’s losses were: 
• Persistent Increase in the prices of raw & 

packing material and other input costs, mainly 
fuel and power.

• Constant increase in the financial cost
• Unavailability of export refinance 
• Provisioning for unsaleable/expired stocks etc. 
Due to the above factors, the company was 
constrained to revise its pricing strategy to ensure 
profitable operations. As a result, a revenue growth 
of 9.47% was recorded while the gross profit margin 
also improved to 23.78% that had sharply decreased 
during the previous year. Like previous years, due to 
paucity of funds, we were not able to make advance 
procurement of raw & packing material in bulk 
on a timely basis and resultantly, were exposed to 
persistent price fluctuations in the market.     

The provision for current taxation for the year 
represents tax under final tax regime and minimum 
tax on turnover.

During the period, two sponsors extended fresh 
loans of PKR 91Million to the company. The sponsors 
remain committed to being financially supportive to 
the company.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company is exposed to certain risks and 
uncertainties. However, we consider the following as 
key risk areas:

• The uncertainties arising due to consistent 
inflation in the country;

• Significant competition in our product categories 
making upward price revision a challenge;

• Adverse movement in commodity prices and 
foreign exchange rates since some of our raw & 
packing materials are either directly or indirectly 
imported; and

• Adverse movement in interest rates leading to 
unprecedented increased cost of borrowings 

MANUFACTURING OPERATIONS

The Company faces multiple challenges towards 
effectively carrying on the manufacturing operations. 
However, optimal utilization of resources is being 
ensured with the help of attaining cost savings in 
manufacturing, administrative and distribution areas. 
there is a need to carry out major modernizations and 
improvements for which, profitable operations in the 
next year coupled with fresh induction of money shall 
be required. 

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

It is a challenge to maintain a good talent base within 
the company in the existing inflationary conditions 
but the management is committed towards taking 
care of its employees by defining such policies and 
procedures that should add to their productivity. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

No incident of accident, causing physical injury or 
misconduct was reported during the year. 

The Company contributed Rs 549 million to the 
National Exchequer on account of various government 
levies including customs duty, sales tax, federal 
excise duty and income tax. Furthermore, foreign 
exchange of USD 1.9 million was also generated 
through exports during the period under review.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There is no such subsequent event that may have 
any material impact upon the financial statements 
under review.  

FUTURE OUTLOOK

It is hoped that the financial results of the company will 
continue to improve in the coming year. The company 
is totally focused towards bringing production 
efficiencies, quality improvements and innovation and 
the management is working rigorously to enhance 
operations in an efficient and robust manner. At the 
same time, we are also working to enhance secondary 
sales and our customer outreach both locally as well 
as in internationally. 

The company has also explored new B2B business 
opportunities by optimally utilizing its Pulping Plant and 
expects to further benefit from this channel in future. 
The fixed costs are continuously being monitored and 
controlled. 

The main challenges for the coming financial year shall 
again be to manage the economic uncertainty and 
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lower buying power of the customers due to adverse 
economic conditions.  
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Directors and management are responsible 
for the Company’s system of internal controls and 
for reviewing annually its effectiveness in providing 
shareholders with a return on their investments 
that is consistent with a responsible assessment 
and management of risks. This includes reviewing 
financial, operational and compliance controls and 
risk management procedures and their effectiveness. 
The Board and Audit Committee regularly reviews 
reports pertaining to the robust internal audit function 
of the Company to satisfy the internal control 
requirements. The Company’s internal audit function 
performs reviews of the integrity and effectiveness of 
control activities and provides regular reports to the 
Audit Committee and the Board.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING 
FRAMEWORK

• The financial statements, prepared by the 
management of the Company, present fairly its 
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash 
flows and changes in equity. 

• Proper books of account of the Company have 
been maintained. 

• Appropriate accounting policies have been 
consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based 
on reasonable and prudent judgment. 

• International Financial Reporting Standards, as 
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in 
preparation of financial statements. 

• The system of internal control is sound in design 
and has been effectively implemented and 
monitored. 

• The financial statements have been prepared on a 
going concern basis.

• A statement regarding key financial data for the 
last six years is annexed to this report. All trades in 
the share of Company carried out by its directors, 
executives and their spouses and minor children 
are also annexed with this annual report.

• Where any statutory payment on account of 
taxes, duties, levies and charges is outstanding, 
the amount with a brief descriptions and reasons 
for the same is adequately disclosed in the 
financial statement.  

  
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The Company is committed to avoid any adverse 
impact to the environment caused due to its 
operations. A sizeable portion of energy requirements 
is met from agricultural bi-products (biomass).

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board consists of 7 male directors and 1 female 
directors with following composition:

• Independent Directors .................................. 3
• Non-Executive Directors .............................. 4
• Executive Directors ...................................... 1

Director’s Name Designation Meetings Attended
Mr. Shazad Ghaffar Chairman & Non-Executive Director 5
Mr. Najam Aziz Sethi Chief Executive Officer 5

Syed Mohammad Mehdi Mohsin Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Abdul Hamid Dagia Non-Executive Director 5
Syeda Umme Kulsum Imam Non-Executive Director 5
Syed Manzar Hassan Independent Director 1
Mr. Aamir Amin Independent Director 4
Mr. Rizwan Bashir Independent Director 5

Leave of absence was granted to the directors who could not attend the meetings.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS OFFICE

During the year, Ms. Naila Bhatti resigned from the position of Chief Executive Officer. Her position was filled by 
Mr. Najam Aziz Sethi while Mr. Shazad Ghaffar become Chairman of Board of Directors. 
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the year, four (4) meetings of the audit committee were held. Attendance by each Director was as 
follows: 
Director’s Name Designation Meetings Attended
Mr. Rizwan Bashir Independent Director/Chairman 4
Mr. Shazad Ghaffar Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Aamir Amin Non-Executive Director 4

 

REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTORS

Details of aggregate amount of remuneration 
separately of executive and non-executive directors, 
including salary/fee, perquisites, benefits, and other 
allowances are disclosed in the annexed financial 
statements. The remuneration policy is approved 
by the Board of Directors and the Board revisits the 
policy from time to time.

COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE 
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS

The requirements of the Regulations relevant for the 
year ended June 30, 2023 have been adopted by the 
Company and the statement of compliance in this 
regard is annexed to the Report.

PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING 

The information under this head is annexed. 

RELATED PARTIES

The transactions between the related parties are 
made on mutually agreed terms and conditions. 
Details of all the transactions carried out during the 
year can be seen in Note 41 to the annexed financial 
statements.

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Loss per share for the year under report is Rs. 2.59 
as compared to the last year figure of Rs 27.19.

DIVIDEND

Based on the results no dividend is proposed for the 
year under review. 

AUDITORS

The present Auditors, Messrs. Crowe Hussain 
Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants retire and 
offer themselves for reappointment. The Board of 
Directors, on recommendation of Audit Committee, 
proposes the reappointment of Messrs. Crowe 
Hussain Chaudhury & Co. Chartered Accountants, 
for the year ending June 30, 2024.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The board of directors would like to express 
their gratitude to all employees for their efforts 
and commitment in successfully overcoming the 
challenges faced by the Company during the year.
 
 For and on behalf of Board of Directors

 

 
Najam Aziz Sethi
Chief Executive Officer 

Shazad Ghaffar 
Chairman

Lahore: October 10, 2023
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

 Rs. In 
'000 

 %  Rs. In 
'000 

 %  Rs. In 
'000 

 %  Rs. In 
'000 

 %  Rs. In 
'000 

 %  Rs. In 
'000 

 % 

Balance Sheet 

Non-current Assets  656,320  40.50  697,771   42.4   694,663   40.66   614,348   44.50   638,792   47.55   696,294   46.63 

Current Assets  964,214  59.50  946,244   57.6   1,013,994   59.34   766,271   55.50   704,702   52.45   797,015   53.37 

Total Assets  1,620,534  100  1,644,015   100   1,708,657   100   1,380,619   100   1,343,494   100   1,493,309   100 

Equity  143,746  8.87  202,936   12.34   836,418   48.95   74,310   5.38   126,445   9.41   209,300   14.02 

Non-current Liabilities  141,008  8.70  135,742   8.26   126,384   7.40   134,230   9.72   134,123   9.98   119,730   8.02 

Current Liabilities  1,335,780  82.43  1,305,337   79.40   745,855   43.65   1,172,079   84.90   1,082,926   80.61   1,164,279   77.97 

Total equity and Liabilities  1,620,534  100  1,644,015   100   1,708,657   100   1,380,619   100   1,343,494   100   1,493,309   100 

Profit and Loss Account            

Net Sales  2,724,931  100.00  2,489,291   100.00   2,210,620   100.00   2,112,493   100.00   1,987,552   100.00   1,628,007   100.00 

Cost of Sales  (2,076,815)  (76.22)  (2,295,471)  (92.21)  (1,721,280)  (77.86)  (1,670,070)  (79.06)  (1,553,139)  (78.14)  (1,375,119)  (84.47)

Gross Profit  648,116  23.78   193,820   7.79   489,340   22.14   442,423   20.94   434,413   21.86   252,888   15.53 

Selling and Distribution expenses  (444,879) (16.33)  (546,250)  (21.94)  (311,214)  (14.08)  (253,637)  (12.01)  (282,634)  (14.22)  (407,886)  (25.05)

Administrative expenses  (187,798) (6.89)  (227,878)  (9.15)  (137,043)  (6.20)  (150,669)  (7.13)  (135,252)  (6.80)  (136,106)  (8.36)

  15,439  0.57   (580,308)  (23.31)  41,082   1.86   38,117   1.80   16,527   0.83   (291,104)  (17.88)

Other operating expense  (63,954) (2.35)  (16,885)  (0.68)  (8,767)  (0.40)  (3,263)  (0.15)  (5,341)  (0.27)  (2,550)  (0.16)

Other operating income  107,685  3.95   47,995   1.93   35,111   1.59   12,162   0.58   15,592   0.78   25,480   1.57 

  59,171  2.17   (549,197)  (22.06)  67,426   3.05   47,016   2.23   26,777   1.35   (268,174)  (16.47)

Financial expenses  (85,083) (3.12)  (36,981)  (1.49)  (25,631)  (1.16)  (74,272)  (3.52)  (78,300)  (3.94)  (49,244)  (3.02)

(Loss)/Profit before tax  (25,912) (0.95)  (586,178)  (23.55)  41,795   1.89   (27,256)  (1.29)  (51,523)  (2.59)  (317,418)  (19.50)

Taxation  (33,285) (1.22)  (35,799)  (1.44)  (31,329)  (1.42)  (28,189)  (1.33)  (28,483)  (1.43)  24,799   1.52 

(Loss)/Profit for the year  (59,197) (2.17)  (621,977)  (25)  10,466  0.5   (55,445)  (3)  (80,006)  (4)  (292,619)  (18)
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

 Rs. In 
'000 

 Rs. In 
‘000 

 Rs. In 
'000 

 Rs. In 
‘000 

 Rs. In 
'000 

 Rs. In 
‘000 

Balance Sheet        
Non-current Assets   656,320   697,771   694,663   614,348   638,792   696,294 
 Current Assets   964,214   944,132   1,013,994   766,271   704,702   797,015 

 Total Assets   1,620,534   1,641,903   1,708,657   1,380,619   1,343,494   1,493,309 

 Equity   143,746   202,936   836,418   74,310   126,445   209,299 
 Non-current Liabilities   141,008   135,742   126,384   134,230   134,123   119,730 
 Current Liabilities   1,335,780   1,303,225   745,855   1,172,079   1,082,926   1,164,280 

Total equity and Liabilities   1,620,534   1,641,903   1,708,657   1,380,619   1,343,494   1,493,309 

Profit and Loss Account      
 Net Sales   2,724,931   2,489,291   2,210,620   2,112,493   1,987,552   1,628,008 
 Cost of Sales   (2,076,815)  (2,295,471)  (1,721,280)  (1,670,070)  (1,553,139)  (1,375,118)

 Gross Profit   648,116   193,820   489,340   442,423   434,413   252,890 
 Administrative expenses   (187,798)  (546,250)  (137,043)  (150,669)  (135,252)  (136,106)
 Selling and Distribution expenses   (444,879)  (227,878)  (311,214)  (253,637)  (282,634)  (407,887)

  15,439   (580,308)  41,082   38,117   16,527   (291,103)
 Other operating expenses   (63,954)  (16,885)  (8,767)  (3,263)  (5,341)  (2,551)
 Other operating income   107,685   47,995   35,111   12,162   15,592   25,480 

  59,172   (549,196)  67,427   47,017   26,778   (268,174)
 Financial expenses   (85,083)  (36,981)  (25,631)  (74,272)  (78,300)  (49,244)

 (Loss)/Profit before tax   (25,911)  (586,177)  41,796   (27,256)  (51,523)  (317,418)
 Taxation   (33,285)  (35,799)  (31,329)  (28,189)  (28,483)  24,799 

 (Loss)/Profit for the year   (59,196)  (621,976)  10,467   (55,445)  (80,006)  (292,619)
 
Summary of Cash Flows       
 Net cash flows from operating activities   (28,102)  (181,985)  (235,165)  84,352   47,250   (147,501)
 Net cash flows from investing activities   (9,150)  (60,684)  (106,378)  (23,031)  5,087   (32,397)
 Net cash flows from financing activities   36,942   251,667   745,000   50,000   (21,333)  107,333 

 Net change in cash and cash equivalents   (309)  8,997   403,457   111,321   31,003   (72,565)
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VALUE ADDITION AND ITS 
DISTRIBUTION

 2023  2022 
WEALTH GENERATED Rs. In ‘000 % Rs. In ‘000 %
    
    
Net Sales  2,724,931  -  2,489,291  -
Other Income  107,685  -  47,995  -

  2,832,616  100.00  2,537,286  100.00  
  
DISTRIBUTION OF WEALTH    
    
Bought-In-Materials & Services  2,679,704  94.60  2,610,321  102.88
    
To Employee:    
Remuneration, Benefit and Facilities  423,017  14.93  459,278  18.10
    
To Government:    
Income tax, WPPF and WWF  33,285  1.18  39,695  1.56
Finance Cost including exchange loss  42,384  1.50  36,981  1.46  
Dividend to shareholders  -    -  -    -
Invested from revenue reserves(Balancing Figure)  (345,773) -12.21  (609,020) -24.00
    
Charity and Donation  -  0.000  31  0%

  2,832,616  100.00  2,537,286  100.00

103%

18%

2%
1%

-24% 0%

2022

95%

15%
1%

1%
-12% 0%

2023
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STAKEHOLDER 
INFORMATION

   2023 2022   2021   2020   2019 2018
Rate of return 
Return on assets (%)  (3.7) (37.9) 0.6  (4.0) (6.0) (19.6)
Return on equity (%)  (41.2) (306.5) 1.3  (74.6) (63.3) (139.8)
Return on capital employed (%)  20.8  (162.0) 7.0  22.5  10.3  (81.5)
Interest cover ratio  0.7  (14.9) 2.6  (0.6) (34.2) (5.5)   
       

Gross profit Margin (%)  23.8  7.8  22.1  20.9  21.9  15.5 
Net profit to sales (%)  (2.2) (25.0) 0.5  (2.6) (4.0) (18.0)
EBITDA (Rs.)   116,894   (494,017)  100,976   90,321   74,859   (219,665)
EBITDA margin to sales (%)  4.3   (19.8) 4.6  4.3  3.8  (13.5)       
Liquidity       
Current ratio  0.7  0.7  1.4  0.7  0.7  0.7 
Quick Ratio  0.3  0.4  0.8  0.4  0.4  0.3 
       
Financial Gearing       
Debt-Equity Ratio  10.3  7.1  0.2  0.9  0.9  0.8 
Debt to Assets %  91.1  87.6  51.0  94.6  90.6  86         
Capital Efficiency
       
Debtor turnover Days   27   39   54   24   24   14 
Inventory turnover Days   76   67   86   73   65   123 
Creditor turnover Days   125   90   90   87   106   98 
Operating Cycle   (22)  15   50   10   (17)  38 
Fixed assets turnover ratio   4.2   3.6   3.5   3.7   3.3   2.3 
Total assets turnover Ratio   1.7   1.5   1.3   1.5   1.5   1.1 

SHAREHOLDER 
INFORMATION



32

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023
 
 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
   
 454 1 100 15,457
 472 101 500 158,348
 243 501 1,000 214,055
 358 1,001 5,000 859,377
 49 5,001 10,000 344,748
 18 10,001 15,000 224,252
 11 15,001 20,000 188,686
 6 20,001 25,000 139,195
 5 25,001 30,000 137,103
 1 30,001 35,000 30,500
 1 35,001 40,000 36,000
 1 40,001 45,000 41,538
 2 45,001 50,000 97,300
 1 60,001 65,000 64,248
 2 75,001 80,000 155,613
 1 80,001 85,000 82,550
 1 100,001 105,000 104,516
 1 105,001 110,000 109,659
 1 120,001 125,000 125,000
 1 125,001 130,000 130,000
 1 160,001 165,000 162,275
 2 170,001 175,000 346,600
 1 250,001 255,000 252,664
 1 490,001 495,000 492,592
 1 515,001 520,000 517,715
 1 555,001 560,000 556,463
 1 850,001 855,000 850,334
 1 870,001 875,000 874,500
 1 2,070,001 2,075,000 2,072,196
 3 4,495,001 4,500,000 13,491,516
    
 1,642   22,875,000 



33

     Categories of shareholders  Share held Percentage
   
1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer,  13,977,240 61.1027%
 and their spouse and minor childern   
    
2 Associated Companies,   -    0.0000%
 undertakings and related PARTIES   
    
3 NIT and ICP  2,196,284 9.6012%
    
4 Banks, Development Financial Institutions  17,117 0.0748%
 Non- Banking Financial Institutions.   
    
5 Insurance Companies  0 0.0000%
    
6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds  0 0.0000%
    
7 Shareholders holding 10% or more  13,963,116 61.0409%
    
8 General Public   
        a.  Local  5,489,258 23.9968%
        b. Foreign  87,050 0.3805%
    
9 Others (to be specified)   
 -  Joint Stock Companies  1,041,548 4.5532%
 -  Pension Funds  64,248 0.2809%
 -  Others  2,255 0.0099%
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS 
REQUIRED UNDER C.C.G.
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

Sr. No. Name No. of Shares Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail):  -     -   
   
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)  -     -   
   
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):     

1 SYED MOHAMMAD MEHDI MOHSIN  4,669,872  20.4147%
2 MR. RIZWAN BASHIR   1,501  0.0066%
3 MST. UMME KULSUM IMAM  3,267  0.0143%
4 MR. NAJAM AZIZ SETHI  1,452  0.0063%
5 MR. AAMIR AMIN (NIT NOMINEE)  --  --
6 SYED MANZAR HASSAN (CDC)  1,452  0.0063%
7 MR. SHAHZAD GHAFFAR  1,452  0.0063%
8 MR. ABDUL HAMID AHMAD DAGIA (CDC)  5,000  0.0219%
9 SYEDA MATANAT GHAFFAR W/O MR. SHAHZAD GHAFFAR (CDC)  4,622,172  20.2062%
10 SYEDA MAIMANAT MOHSIN W/O MR. NAJAM AZIZ SETHI (CDC)  4,671,072  20.4200% 

Executives:  - -  
 
Public Sector Companies & Corporations:  -     -   
   
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance   81,365  0.3557%
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:   
   
Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)  
 
Sr. No. Name Holding Percentage

1 SYED MOHAMMAD MEHDI MOHSIN  4,669,872  20.4147%
2 SYEDA MAIMNAT MOHSIN  4,671,072  20.4200%
3 SYEDA MATANAT MOHSIN (CDC)  4,622,172  20.2062%
4 CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST (CDC)  2,072,196  9.0588%  
 
All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their spouses and 
minor children shall also be disclosed: None
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
WITH THE LISTED COMPANIES 
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
MITCHELL’S FRUIT FARMS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:         
1. The total number of directors are 8 as per the following; -            
 a)  Male:        7    
 b)  Female:   1              
2. The composition of the Board is as follows:                
Category Names
Independent Directors Mr.Syed Manzar Hasan

Mr.Rizwan Bashir
Mr.Amir Amin

Executive Director Mr.Najam Aziz Sethi
Non-Executive Directors Mr.Shazad Ghaffar

Mr.Syed Mohammad Mehdi Mohsin
Ms.Umme Kulsoom Imam
Mr.Abdul Hameed Dagia

Female directors Ms.Umme kulsoom Imam
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them 

is serving as a director on more than seven listed 
companies, including this company; 

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct 
and has ensured that appropriate steps have been 
taken to disseminate it throughout the company 
along with its supporting policies and procedures; 

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission 
statement, overall corporate strategy and 
significant policies of the company. The Board has 
ensured that complete record of particulars of the 
significant policies along with their date of approval 
or updating is maintained by the company; 

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly 
exercised and decisions on relevant matters 
have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as 
empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act 
and these Regulations; 

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by 
the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director 
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board 
has complied with the requirements of Act and the 
Regulations with respect to frequency, recording 
and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board; 

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent 
procedures for remuneration of directors in 
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;  

9. Four directors have acquired prescribed 
certification under Directors’ Training Program 
while the Company shall facilitate further training 
for the remaining Directors in near future as defined 
in these regulations.

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief 
financial officer, company secretary and head of 
internal audit, including their remuneration and 
terms and conditions of employment and complied 
with relevant requirements of the Regulations they 
remain unchanged and no new appointments 
were made in these faculties.

11. Chief financial officer and Chief Executive officer 
duly endorsed the financial statements before 
approval of the Board; 

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of 
members given below; - 

   
 a)   Audit Committee 

(i) Mr. Rizwan Bashir Chairman
(ii) Mr. Amir Amin Member
(iii) Mr. Shazad Ghaffar Member
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  b)   HR and Remuneration Committee 
(i) Mr. Manzar Hassan Chairman
(ii) Ms. Umme Kulsoom Imam Member
(iii) Mr. Amir Amin Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees 
have been formed, documented and advised to 
the committee for compliance; 

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ 
yearly) of the committee were as per following:

 a) Audit Committee:      4* 
 b) HR and Remuneration Committee:  0

 * Quarterly meeting required in first quarter was 
not held due to extension in holding the Annual 
General Meeting.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit 
function who is considered suitably qualified and 
experienced for the purpose and are conversant 
with the policies and procedures of the company; 

16. The statutory auditors of the company have 
confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory 
rating under the Quality Control Review program 
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight 

Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners 
are in compliance with International Federation of 
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as 
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the 
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative 
(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent 
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial 
officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or 
director of the company;  

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated 
with them have not been appointed to provide 
other services except in accordance with the Act, 
these regulations or any other requirement and the 
auditors have confirmed that they have observed 
IFAC guidelines in this regard;

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 
6, 7, 8, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been 
complied with except 27(2)(i) to hold first quarter 
meeting of Audit Committee due to extension in 
Annual General Meeting; and 

19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, 
other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 
are below (if applicable): 

Sr. No. Regulation No. Description Explanation 
1 19 By June 30, 2022, all direc-

tors shall acquire certifica-
tion under director training 
program.

Directors in need of DTP are in line to re-
ceive the training in the following year. They 
are aligned and enrolled for such training 
and soon would be receiving it.

2 28(3) HR & R Committee shall 
meet at least once in a finan-
cial year.

We are in the process of recruiting more 
resources in our HR department. We shall 
ensure compliance with this requirement in 
the following year.

 Najam Aziz Sethi    Shazad Ghaffar
 Chief Executive Officer         Chairman
 Lahore: October 10, 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MITCHELL’S FRUIT FARMS LIMITED
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED 
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Mitchell’s Fruit Farms 
Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with the requirements of regulation 
36 of the Regulations. 
The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s compliance 
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the 
requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and 
review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.
As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting 
and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not 
required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls 
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance 
procedures and risks.
The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. 
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the 
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement 
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the 
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.
Further, we highlight below instance of non-compliance with the requirement of the Regulations as reflected in 
the paragraph reference where it is stated in the Statement of Compliance:

Sr. No Paragraph 
Reference Description

1 18 The Audit Committee of the Company did not hold its meeting during the first quarter of the 
year ended June 30, 2023, as required under regulation 27(2)(i) of the Regulations.

2 19 Three Directors out of Seven Directors have not acquired the prescribed certification under the 
Directors’ Training Program as required under regulation 19(2) of the Regulations.

3 19 The HR & R Committee of the Company did not hold any meeting during the year ended June 
30, 2023, as required under regulation 28(3) of the Regulations.

 

Lahore  CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Date: 12th October, 2023  Chartered Accountants
UDIN: CR202310051dYlwyUWnD
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MITCHELL’S FRUIT FARMS LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of 
MITCHELL’S FRUIT FARMS LIMITED (the Company), 
which comprise the statement of financial position 
as at June 30, 2023 and the statement of profit or 
loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity, the statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to and 
forming part of these financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information, and we state that we 
have obtained all the information and explanations 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of profit 
or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof 
conform with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan and give the information 
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), 
in the manner so required and respectively give a true 
and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as 
at June 30, 2023 and of the loss, its comprehensive 
loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as 
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of 
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities 
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to the note 2.2 to the financial 
statements, which indicates that the Company 
incurred a total comprehensive loss of Rs. 59.190 
million (2022: Rs. 633.482 million) during the year 
and as at the reporting date, the Company’s current 
liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 371.566 
million (2022: Rs. 359.093 million). These events or 
conditions, along with factors mentioned in note 24 
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may 
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, and therefore, it may be 
unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities 
in the normal course of business. Our opinion is not 
modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our 
professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current 
period. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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S. No Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
(1) Revenue recognition

Refer to note 25 to the financial statements,
Revenue of the Company has increased from 
Rs. 2,489.2 million to Rs. 2,724.9 million for the 
year ending June 30, 2023.
  
The Company is primarily engaged in the 
manufacturing and sales of various confectionery 
and grocery products. We identified recognition 
of revenue as a key audit matter due to revenue 
being one of the key performance indicators 
of the Company and due to significant 
management judgements and estimations 
involved in determining the amount of revenue to 
be recognized.

Our key audit procedures related to revenue 
included:

• Obtaining an understanding of the Company’s 
processes and related internal controls for 
revenue recognition and on a sample basis, 
testing the operating effectiveness of those 
controls.

• Assessing the appropriateness of the 
Company’s revenue recognition policies and 
their compliance with applicable accounting 
and reporting standards.

• Comparing a sample of revenue transactions 
recorded during the year with customers’ 
orders, sales invoices, delivery orders and 
other relevant underlying documents.

• Reviewing contracts with customers and 
comparing the revenue transactions to the 
relevant sales orders, sales invoices, delivery 
challans and other relevant underlying 
documents to assess whether the revenue 
was recorded in accordance with the 
Company’s revenue accounting policy and 
applicable financial reporting framework.

• Examining the customer receipts for sales 
made during the year.

• Assessing the appropriateness and adequacy 
of disclosed information in the financial 
statements in accordance with the relevant 
accounting and reporting standards.

In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have 
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report:
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Information Other than the Financial Statements 
and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information 
included in the Annual Report, but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Board of 
Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation 
Management is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and the 
requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) 
and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation 
of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in 
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements.

S. No Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
(2) Stock in Trade

Refer to notes 3.8 & 9 to the financial statements 
for stock-in-trade.
 
There is an increase in value of inventory from 
Rs. 430 million to Rs. 520 million as of June 30, 
2023. This represents a significant portion, 32%, 
of the Company’s total assets at the end of the 
fiscal year.

The inventories encompass diverse categories, 
including raw materials, packing materials, work 
in process, and finished goods. These are valued 
at lower of cost and estimated net realizable 
value (NRV). Calculating NRV involves assessing 
both selling prices and associated costs required 
to facilitate sales.

The provisions for slow-moving and obsolete 
stock-in-trade necessitate substantial judgments 
and estimations by management.

Considering the above matter, the valuation of 
stock in trade has been considered a key audit 
matter.

Our key audit procedures included:
• Observing the physical inventory count 

procedures and comparing, on a sample basis, 
physically counted inventories with valuation 
sheets provided by the management.

• Comparing on a sample basis specific 
purchases and directly attributable costs with 
underlying supporting documents.

• Checking the accumulation of costs at different 
stages of production to ascertain valuation of 
work in process and finished goods.

• Comparing the net realizable value, on a 
sample basis, to the cost of finished goods to 
assess whether any adjustments are required 
to value stocks in accordance with applicable 
accounting and reporting standards.

• Assessing the provision for slow moving 
stocks as of the reporting date and assessed 
whether it is in accordance with the Company’s 
policies and relevant accounting and reporting 
standards.

• Considering adequacy of the related 
disclosures and assessed whether these are 
in accordance with the applicable accounting 
and financial reporting standards.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as 
applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 
not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control 
relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of 
management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that 
a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the board of directors with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and 

to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on 
our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the board of 
directors, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters 
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences of doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our 
opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the 

Company as required by the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement 
of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive 
income, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows together 
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX 
of 2017) and are in agreement with the books 
of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and 
guarantees extended during the year were for 
the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) No zakat was deductible at source under the 
Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2022, were audited by another 
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on 
those statements on November 11, 2022.
The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this 
independent auditor’s report is Amin Ali.

 

CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Lahore
Dated: October 12, 2023
UDIN: AR202310051CXtTRIzGI
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
   
Non Current Assets    
Property, plant and equipment 4  622,300,506   668,093,802 
Intangible assets 5  30,350,731   26,585,558 
Biological assets 6  2,444,402   1,550,000 
Long term deposits 7  1,224,780   1,541,543 
   
    656,320,419   697,770,903  
Current Assets
Stores and spares 8  57,571,705   45,561,599 
Stock in trade 9  520,738,674   430,965,294 
Trade debts 10  191,854,393   202,059,716 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable 11  64,123,643   127,526,438 
Income tax recoverable - net 12  108,613,307   118,506,475 
Cash and bank balances 13  21,312,106   21,624,400 
   
    964,213,828   946,243,922 
   
Total Assets   1,620,534,247   1,644,014,825 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
    
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized share capital   
    40,000,000 (2022: 40,000,000) ordinary    
     shares of Rs. 10 each   400,000,000   400,000,000 
   
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 14  228,750,000   228,750,000 
Reserves 15  (85,003,937)  (25,813,586)
   
    143,746,063   202,936,414  
Non Current Liabilities    
Long term finances - secured 16  -     -   
Deferred grant 17  -     -   
Deferred liabilities 18  141,008,335   135,741,601 
Deferred taxation 19  -     -   
   
    141,008,335   135,741,601
Current Liabilities 
Current portion of non-current liabilities 20  -     15,074,796 
Trade and other payables 21  668,555,256   709,440,790 
Finances under markup arrangements 22  302,002,267   341,059,804 
Loan from related parties - unsecured 23  316,000,000   225,000,000 
Accrued finance cost   47,309,572   12,848,666 
Unclaimed dividend   1,912,754   1,912,754 
   
    1,335,779,849   1,305,336,810

Total Equity and Liabilities   1,620,534,247   1,644,014,825

Contingencies and commitments 24
   
The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements   

 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at June 30, 2023

				Badar	M.	Khan			 Najam	Aziz	Sethi		 Shazad	Ghaffar
*hief -inancial 6ѝcer *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer  *hairman
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*hief -inancial 6ѝcer *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer  *hairman

Statement of Profit or Loss 
 For the Year ended June 30, 2023

  For the year  For the year
  ended ended
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

Revenue 25    2,724,930,890   2,489,291,011   
 
Cost of sales 26    (2,076,814,684)  (2,295,470,632))
   
Gross	profit	    648,116,206   193,820,379   
 
Administrative expenses 27   (187,798,148)  (227,877,998)  
 
Selling and distribution expenses 28    (444,878,650)  (546,250,088)  
 
    (632,676,798)  (774,128,086)
   
Operating	profit	�	�loss�    15,439,408   (580,307,707)  
 
Other operating expenses 29  (63,953,923)  (16,884,506)
Finance cost 30  (85,083,157)  (36,980,631)
Other income 31  107,685,416   47,995,036   
 
Loss before Taxation    (25,912,256)  (586,177,808)  
 
Taxation 32 (33,285,040)  (35,799,231) 
 
Net Loss for the Year  (59,197,296)  (621,977,039)
    
3oss	per	Share	-	Basic	and	Diluted 33  (2.59)  (27.19) 
   
   
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements�  
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 For the year ended June 30, 2023 

  For the year  For the year
  ended ended
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees

Net Loss for the year                        (59,197,296)  (621,977,039) 
 
Other comprehensive income  
  
0tems that ^ill not Ie re-classified suIseXuentl`
 to profit or loss      
     
9emeasurement gain � �loss� on defined Ienefit plan
- net of deferred tax  6,945   �11,504,604� 
  
0tems that ma` Ie re-classified suIseXuentl` to profit or loss  -     -   

6ther comprehensi]e income � �loss� for the `ear   6,945   �11,504,604� 

Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year    �59,190,351�  �633,481,643� 

  
The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements�  

				Badar	M.	Khan			 Najam	Aziz	Sethi		 Shazad	Ghaffar
*hief -inancial 6ѝcer *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer  *hairman



47

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

Share 
Cpital

            Reserves

Sub-Total
Reserves

Total 
Equity

  Capital 
  Reserve

Revenue 
Reserves

Share 
premium

General 
Reserve

Accumulated 
Loss

                                                                
                                                                   ...............................................Rupees in thousands....................................................

Balance as at June 30, 2021 228,750,000   609,335,878   300,000   (1,967,821)  607,668,057   836,418,057

5et loss for the `ear  -     -     -     �621,977,039�  �621,977,039�  �621,977,039�
6ther comprehensi]e loss for the `ear  -     -     -     �11,504,604�  �11,504,604�  �11,504,604�

Total comprehensi]e loss for the `ear  -     -     -     �633,481,643�  �633,481,643�  �633,481,643�

Balance as at June 30, 2022  228,750,000   609,335,878   300,000   (635,449,464)  (25,813,586)  202,936,414 

5et loss for the `ear  -     -     -     �59,197,296�  �59,197,296� �59,197,296�
6ther comprehensi]e income for the `ear  -     -     -     6,945   6,945   6,945
  
Total comprehensi]e loss for the `ear -     -     -     �59,190,351�  �59,190,351�  �59,190,351�

Balance as at June 30, 2023   228,750,000   609,335,878   300,000   (694,639,815)  (85,003,937)  143,746,063 

The annexed notes from 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements

Revenue Reserves 

				Badar	M.	Khan			 Najam	Aziz	Sethi		 Shazad	Ghaffar
*hief -inancial 6ѝcer *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer  *hairman
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended June 30, 2023 
  For the year  For the year
  ended ended
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022

 Note Rupees Rupees

Loss before taxation  (25,912,256) (586,177,808)
     
Adjustments for:
   
- Depreciation of property, plant and equipment   55,179,100   54,898,312 
 - Amortization of intangible assets   2,543,577   680,183 
 - Provision for gratuity   33,863,078   26,933,875 
 - Provision for leave absences   8,153,201   14,086,534 
 - *apital ^orR in progress charged to profit or loss   845,844   -   
 - Government grant recognized   (125,297)  (1,690,697)
 - Amortization of deferred grant   (358,679)  (398,532)
 - Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment   (7,390,884)  (3,352)
 - Finance cost   85,083,157   36,980,631 
 - Excess liabilities written back   (80,853,444)  -   
 - Allowance for expected credit losses   28,814,501   13,455,178 
 - Provision for obsolete stock   23,465,231   2,422,822 
 - 4aterial ^ritten oќ   55,482,107   96,227,663 
 - Assets ^ritten oќ   25,061,668   3,398,828 
 - Provision for advances   4,675,095   -   
 - Provision for refund liabilities   72,052,355   39,307,211 
 - Gain on revaluation of biological assets   (894,402)  (50,000)
 - 7rofit on disposal of Iiological assets   -     �3,836,000�
 - Exchange loss / (gain)   5,402,659   (21,994,428)
   
   310,998,867   260,418,228 
6perating profit � �loss� Iefore ^orRing capital changes   285,086,611   (325,759,580)  
 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets  
 - Stores and spares   (12,010,106)  (11,353,300)
 - Stock in trade   (168,720,718)  (122,562,177)
 - Trade debts   (24,011,837)  135,785,875 
 - Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivable   33,982,795   (25,962,813)
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities  
- Trade and other payables   (50,717,100)  239,158,445 
  
   (221,476,966)  215,066,030 
  
Cash Generated from / (Used in) Operations   63,609,645   (110,693,550)
  
Finance cost paid   (50,571,750)  (24,846,239)
,mplo`ee defined Ienefits - gratuit` paid   �14,145,107�  �26,225,003�
,mplo`ee defined Ienefits - accumulated aIsences paid   �3,603,322�  �4,448,411�
Long term deposits   -     662,100 
Income tax paid / deducted   (23,394,709)  (16,433,668)
  
   (91,714,888)  (71,291,221)
  
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities   (28,105,243)  (181,984,771)
  
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  
  
Payment for acquisition of property, plant and equipment   (11,337,098)  (86,602,379)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment   8,496,334   795,214 
Payment for acquisition of Intangible assets   (6,308,750)  (15,003,173)
Proceeds from disposal of biological assets   -     40,126,000 
  
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities   (9,149,514)  (60,684,338)
  
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  
  
Loan obtained from related parties   111,000,000   75,000,000 
Loan repaid to related parties   (20,000,000)  -   
Finances under markup arrangements - net   (39,057,537)  206,666,530 
9epa`ment of long term finances   (15,000,000)  (30,000,000)
  
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities   36,942,463   251,666,530 
  
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents   (312,294)  8,997,421 
  
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    21,624,400   12,626,979 
  
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year   21,312,106   21,624,400
    
The annexed notes 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements�

				Badar	M.	Khan			 Najam	Aziz	Sethi		 Shazad	Ghaffar
*hief -inancial 6ѝcer *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer  *hairman
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 For the year ended June 30, 2023 

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
    
 ¸4itchell»s -ruit -arms Limited �¸the *ompan`¹� is a puIlic limited *ompan` incorporated in 

7aRistan� The shares of the *ompan` are listed on 7aRistan :tocR ,xchange� The *ompan` 
is domiciled in 7aRistan and is principall` engaged in the manufacture and sale of ]arious 
confectioner` and grocer` products�     
     

 The geographical location and address of *ompan`»s Iusiness units, including manufacturing 
facilit` are as under!

 
Business Unit Geographical Location

/ead 6ѝce � 9egistered 6ѝce 72 - -** .ulIerg 0=, Lahore
4anufacturing -acilit` 9enala 2hurd, +istrict 6Rara, 7aRistan
9egional :ales oѝce 7lot 
 102, :treet 7, 4ain *hina 9oad, :ector 0-10�3,

0slamaIad
9egional :ales oѝce 4ehran =07 00, .round -loor, /ouse 5o� 18�3, +r� +a^ood

7ota 9oad, 2arachi
    

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION    
 

 2.1 Statement of compliance
  
  These financial statements ha]e Ieen prepared in accordance ^ith the accounting and 

reporting standards as applicaIle in 7aRistan� The accounting and reporting standards 
applicaIle in 7aRistan comprise of!     
  

 - 0nternational -inancial 9eporting :tandards �0-9:�, issued I` the 0nternational Accounting  
:tandards  )oard �0A:)� as notified under the *ompanies Act, 2017"   
   

 - 0slamic -inancial Accounting :tandards �0-A:� issued I` the 0nstitute of *hartered 
Accountants of 7aRistan as are notified under the *ompanies Act, 2017" and 
    

 - 7ro]isions of and directi]es issued under the *ompanies Act, 2017�   
    
>here pro]isions of and directi]es issued under the *ompanies Act, 2017 diќer from the 
0-9:, the pro]isions of and directi]es issued under the *ompanies Act, 2017 ha]e Ieen 
follo^ed�

   
 2.2 Going concern assumption    

 
  +uring the `ear ended 1une 30, 2023, the *ompan` incurred a total comprehensi]e 

loss of 9s� 59�190 million �2022! 9s� 633�482 million� and as of the reporting date, 
the current liaIilities of the *ompan` ha]e exceeded its current assets I` 9s 371�566 
million �2022! 9s� 359�093 million�� +ue to the accumulated losses, the reser]es of the 
*ompan` ha]e depleted� The existing ^orRing capital lines a]ailaIle to the *ompan` 
ha]e Ieen suIstantiall` utiliaed� -urthermore, some of the loan facilities from )anRs 
ha]e expired and extended I` the IanRs for couple of months and the *ompan` is in 
the process of negotiating ^ith the IanRs for their rene^al� These conditions along ^ith 
factors mentioned in 5ote 24 indicate a material uncertaint` ^hich ma` cast significant 
douIt on the *ompan`»s aIilit` to continue as going concern and, therefore, it ma` Ie 
unaIle to realiae its assets and discharge its liaIilities in the normal course of Iusiness�   
The management has planned to undertaRe the follo^ing financial 
 operational 
impro]ement measures for mitigating the aforementioned issues!
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  -*ontinuous support from sponsors"
  -+isposal of selecti]e assets" 
  -impro]ing pricing and discount structure"
  -exploring ne^ geographical marRets for increasing the export sales" and 
  -expanding ne^ Iusiness a]enues including toll manufacturing�

  -urthermore, the *ompan` is negotiating ^ith IanRs for continuance and enhancement 
of existing ^orRing capital lines and is also exploring the possiIilit` of entering into 
further loan agreements ^ith the sponsors of the *ompan �̀ 

  The management of the *ompan` is confident that the aIo]e actions and steps shall 
enaIle the *ompan` to resol]e its liXuidit` issues and suIstantiall` impro]e the financial 
results in the next `ear" therefore, these financial statements ha]e Ieen prepared on a 
going concern Iasis and conseXuentl ,̀ do not include an` adQustments relating to the 
realiaation of its assets and liXuidation of liaIilities�     
  

 2.3 Basis of measurement  
  
  These financial statements ha]e Ieen prepared under the historical cost con]ention 

except to the extent of follo^ing!  
)iological assets 5ote 6 :tated at fair ]alue
:taќ retirement Ienefits 5ote 18 :tated at present ]alue

     
 2.4 Functional and presentation currency

  These financial statements are prepared and presented in 7aR 9upees �9s�� ^hich is the 
*ompan`»s functional and presentation currenc �̀ All the figures ha]e Ieen rounded oќ to 
the nearest rupee, unless other^ise stated�

 
 2.5 Use of estimates and judgments  
  
  The preparation of financial statements in conformit` ^ith accounting and reporting 

standards as applicaIle in 7aRistan reXuires management to maRe Qudgments, estimates 
and assumptions that aќect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, 
liaIilities, income and expenses� These estimates and related assumptions are Iased on 
historical experience and ]arious other factors that are Ielie]ed to Ie reasonaIle under 
the circumstances, the result of ̂ hich form the Iasis of maRing Qudgments aIout carr`ing 
]alues of assets and liaIilities that are not readil` apparent from other sources� Actual 
results ma` diќer from these estimates�     
   

  These estimates and related assumptions are re]ie^ed on an ongoing Iasis� Accounting 
estimates are re]ised in the period in ^hich such re]isions are made� :ignificant 
management estimates in these financial statements primaril` relate to!   
   

  - <seful li]es, residual ]alues, depreciation method of propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment
       ¶ 5ote 3�1 
 4 
 - <seful li]es, residual ]alues and amortiaation method of intangiIle assets
       ¶ 5ote 3�4, 3�5 
 5 
 - -air ]alue of Iiological assets - 5ote 3�26 
 6   
 - 9e]enue from contracts ^ith customers - 5ote 3�18 
 25  
 - 7ro]ision for impairment of in]entories - 5ote 3�8, 8 and 9   
 - 0mpairment loss of non-financial assets other than in]entories ¶ 5ote 3�5, 4 
 5 
 - 7ro]ision for expected credit losses ¶ 5ote 3�10, 10
 - +efined Ienefit oIligation ¶ 5ote 3�12�1 
 18�1
 - ,stimation of pro]isions - 5ote 3�12 
 - ,stimation of contingent liaIilities - 5ote 3�12 
 24
 - *urrent income tax expense, pro]ision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax
    asset �for carried for^ard tax losses and credits� - 5ote 3�16, 32    
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/o^e]er, the management Ielie]es that the change in outcome of estimates ^ould not 
ha]e a material eќect on the amounts disclosed in these financial statements�   
 

 2.6 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

 2.6.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that
	 	 are	effective	in	the	current	year

  The follo^ing standards, amendments and interpretations are eќecti]e for the `ear ended 
1une 30, 2023� These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not rele]ant 
to the *ompan`»s operations or are not expected to ha]e significant impact on the 
*ompan`»s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures�  

 
Effective	Date		-

(Annual
Periods beginning on

or after)
Amendments to 0-9: 3 º)usiness *omIinations» -
9eference the conceptual frame^orR

1anuar` 1, 2022

Amendments to 0A: 16 º7ropert ,̀ 7lant and ,Xuipment» -
7roceeds Iefore intended use

1anuar` 1, 2022

Amendments to 0A: 37 º7ro]isions, *ontingent LiaIilities
and *ontingent Assets» - 6nerous *ontracts · cost of
fulfilling a contract 6nerous *ontracts · cost of fulfilling
a contract 

1anuar` 1, 2022

Annual 0mpro]ements to 0-9: :tandards 2018-2020
*`cle �related to 0-9: 9, 0-9: 16 and      0A: 41�

1anuar` 1, 2022

 
 2.6.2 Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that 

are	not	yet	effective

  ºThe follo^ing standards, amendments and interpretations are onl` eќecti]e for accounting 
periods, Ieginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them� These standards, 
interpretations and the amendments are either not rele]ant to the *ompan`»s operations 
or are not expected to ha]e significant impact on the *ompan`»s financial statements 
other than certain additional disclosures�    

 
Effective	Date		-

(Annual
Periods beginning on

or after)
Amendments to 0A: 1 º7resentation of -inancial :tatements»
- +isclosure of accounting policies

1anuar` 1, 2023

Amendments to 0A: 8 ºAccounting 7olicies, *hanges in
Accounting ,stimates and ,rrors» - +efinition of accounting
estimates� 

1anuar` 1, 2023

Amendments to º0A: 12 0ncome Taxes» - deferred tax related
to assets and liaIilities arising from a single transaction�

1anuar` 1, 2023

Amendments to 0A: 12 º 0ncome taxes» - 0nternational Tax
9eform · 7illar T̂ o 4odel 9ules

1anuar` 1, 2023
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Effective	Date		-
(Annual

Periods beginning on
or after)

Amendments to 0A: 1 º7resentation of -inancial
:tatements» - *lassification of liaIilities as current or non
current�

1anuar` 1, 2023

Amendments to 0A: 1 º7resentation of -inancial
:tatements» - *lassification of liaIilities as current or non
current�

1anuar` 1, 2024

Amendments to 0-9: 16 º Leases» - *larification
on ho^ seller-lessee suIseXuentl` measures
sale and leaseIacR transactions

1anuar` 1, 2024

Amendments to 0A: 7 º:tatement of *ash -lo^s» and º0-9:
7 º-inancial instruments disclosures» - :upplier -inance
Arrangements

1anuar` 1, 2024

Amendments to 0-9: 10 and 28 - :ale or *ontriIution of
Assets Iet^een an 0n]estor and its Associate or 1oint
=enture

+eferred indefinitel`

 
  6ther than the aforesaid amendments, 0A:) has also issued the follo^ing standards 

^hich ha]e not Ieen adopted locall` I` the :ecurities and ,xchange *ommission of 
7aRistan!

 
  -   0-9: 1 ¶ -irst Time Adoption of 0nternational -inancial 9eporting :tandards   

     
   

  -   0-9: 17 ¶ 0nsurance *ontracts     
   

  The *ompan` is in the process of assessing of the impact of these amendments on 
finanicals statement�     
    

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
   
 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are 

set out Ielo �̂ These policies ha]e Ieen consistentl` applied to all the periods presented except 
other^ise stated�     
  

 3.1 Property, plant and equipment 
   
  0tems of propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment other than freehold land are stated at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and identified impairment losses, if an �̀ -reehold land is stated 
at cost less identified impairment loss, if an �̀

  *ost comprises purchase price, including import duties and non-refundaIle purchase 
taxes, after deducting trade discounts and reIates and includes other costs directl` 
attriIutaIle to acXuisition or construction including expenditures on material, laIour and 
o]erheads directl` relating to construction, erection and installation of items of propert ,̀ 
plant and eXuipment� *ost in relation to certain assets ma` also include cost of Iorro^ing 
during construction period in respect of loans taRen for specific proQects� 

  +epreciation is charged on the reducing Ialance method except for 7ulping 7lant, :team 
)oiler and ancillaries ^hich are Ieing depreciated using the straight line method so as 
to ^rite oќ the depreciaIle amount of an asset o]er its estimated useful life at the rate 
mentioned on note 4, after taRing into account their residual ]alues� +epreciation on 
additions is charged from the month in ^hich these are capitaliaed, ^hile no depreciation 
is charged in the month in ^hich an asset is disposed oќ�    
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  The depreciation method and useful li]es of each part of propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment, 

that are significant in relation to the total cost of the asset, are re]ie^ed, and adQusted if 
appropriate, at each reporting date�

 
  5ormal repairs are charged to profit or loss as and ^hen incurred� .ains or losses on 

disposal of propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment are included in the current `ear»s profit or loss� 
An item of propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment is derecogniaed upon disposal or ^hen no 
future economic Ienefits are expected from its use or disposal�    
 

 3.2 Capital work-in-progress 
   
  *apital ^orR-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment losses, if an �̀ All 

expenditure connected ^ith specific assets incurred during installation and construction 
period are carried under capital ^orR-in-progress� These are transferred to operating 
fixed assets as and ^hen these are a]ailaIle for use� All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to proft or loss during the period in ^hich these are incurred�   
  

 3.3 Ijarah contracts  
   
  The *ompan` has entered into 0Qarah contracts under ^hich it oItains usufruct of an 

asset for an agreed period for an agreed consideration� 0Qarah contracts are undertaRen in 
compliance ^ith the :hariah essentials for such contracts prescriIed I` the :tate )anR 
of 7aRistan� 

  The *ompan` accounts for its 0Qarah contracts in accordance ^ith the reXuirements of 
0-A: 2 º0Qarah»� Accordingl ,̀ the *ompan` as a 4ustaQ»ir �lessee� in the 0Qarah contract 
recognises the <Qrah �lease� pa`ments as an expense in the profit or loss on straight line 
Iasis o]er the 0Qarah term�

 
 3.4  Intangibles assets
   
  An intangiIle asset is recogniaed as an asset if it is proIaIle that future economic Ienefits 

attriIutaIle to the asset ^ill Åo^ to the *ompan` and the cost of such asset can Ie 
measured reliaIl �̀ *ost of intangiIle assets i�e� soft^are includes purchase cost and directl` 
attriIutaIle expenses incidental to Iring the soft^are to its intended use�

 
  *osts that are directl` associated ^ith identifiaIle soft^are and ha]e proIaIle economic 

Ienefits Ie`ond one ̀ ear are recogniaed as intangiIle assets� /o^e]er, costs associated 
^ith the maintenance of soft^are are recogniaed as an expense�  

  
  All intangiIles are measured initiall` at cost and suIseXuentl` stated at cost less 

accumulated amortiaation and identified impairment losses, if an �̀ Amortiaation is charged 
to profit or loss using the reducing method so as to ^rite oќ the cost of an asset o]er 
its estimated useful life at the rate mentioned on note 5� The amortiaation period and 
the amortiaation method for intangiIle assets are re]ie^ed, at each reporting date, and 
adQusted if impact on amortiaation is significant�     
   

  Amortiaation on additions is charged from the month in ^hich an asset is put to use ^hile 
no amortiaation is charged for the month in ^hich the asset is disposed oќ�   
    

 3.5 Impairment of non-financial	assets 
   
  Assets that ha]e an indefinite useful life - for example, good^ill or intangiIle assets not 

read` to use - are not suIQect to amortiaation and are tested annuall` for impairment� 
Assets that are suIQect to depreciation or amortiaation are re]ie^ed for impairment 
^hene]er e]ents or changes in circumstances indicate that the carr`ing amount ma` not 
Ie reco]eraIle� An impairment loss is recogniaed for the amount I` ^hich the asset»s 
carr`ing amount exceeds its reco]eraIle amount� The reco]eraIle amount is the higher of 
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an asset»s fair ]alue less costs of disposal and ]alue in use� -or the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lo^est le]els for ^hich there are separatel` 
identifiaIle cash Åo^s �cash-generating units�� 7rior impairments of non-financial assets 
�other than good^ill� are re]ie^ed for possiIle re]ersal at each reporting date� >here 
impairment loss is recogniaed, the depreciation � amortiaation charge is adQusted in future 
periods to allocate the asset»s re]ised carr`ing amount, less its residual ]alue, o]er its 
remaining useful life�

 
 3.6 Leases 
   
  -or contracts entered into, or modified, on or after 1anuar` 1, 2019, the *ompan` 

assesses ^hether a contract contains a lease or not at the inception of a contract� The 
*ompan` reassesses ^hether a contract is, or contains, a lease further ^hen the terms 
and conditions of the contract are modified� 

  The *ompan` determines the lease term as non-cancellaIle period of a lease, together 
^ith Ioth periods co]ered I` an option to extend the lease if the *ompan` is reasonaIl` 
certain to exercise that option and periods co]ered I` an option to terminate the lease if 
the *ompan` is reasonaIl` certain to not to exercise that option� 

  The *ompan` reassesses ̂ hether it is reasonaIl` certain to exercise an extension option, 
or not to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant e]ent 
or a significant change in circumstances that is ^ithin the control of the *ompan` and 
aќects ^hether the *ompan` is reasonaIl` certain to exercise an option not pre]iousl` 
included in its determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an option pre]iousl` 
included in the determination of the lease term�

  The *ompan` re]ises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellaIle period of 
a lease�

 3.6.1.2 Initial measurment

  Lease liability   
   
  At the commencement date, the *ompan` measures the lease liaIilit` at the present 

]alue of the lease pa`ments that are not paid� The lease pa`ments are discounted using 
the interest rate implicit in the lease, or the *ompan`»s incremental Iorro^ing rate if 
the implicit rate is not readil` a]ailaIle�  .enerall ,̀ the *ompan` uses its incremental 
Iorro^ing rate as the discount rate�

  Lease pa`ments comprise fixed pa`ments �including in suIstance fixed pa`ments� less 
an` lease incenti]es recei]aIle, ]ariaIle lease pa`ments that depend on an index or a 
rate, and amounts expected to Ie paid under residual ]alue guarantees� Lease pa`ments 
also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonaIl` certain to Ie exercised 
I` the *ompan` and pa`ments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term 
reÅects the *ompan` exercising the option to terminate�   
 

  9ight-of-use asset  
      
  The *ompan` initiall` measures the right-of-use asset at cost� This cost comprises the 

amount of lease liaIilit` as initiall` measured, plus an` lease pa`ments made on or Iefore 
the commencement date, less lease incenti]es recei]ed, initial direct costs and estimated 
terminal costs �i�e� dismantling or other site restoration costs reXuired I` the terms and 
conditions of the lease contract��
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 3.6.1.3 Subsequent measurement 

  Lease liaIilit` 
   
  After the commencement date, the *ompan` re-measures the lease liaIilit` to reÅect the 

aќect of interest on outstanding lease liaIilit ,̀ lease pa`ments made, reassessments and 
lease modifications etc� =ariaIle lease pa`ments not included in the measurement of the 
lease liaIilit` and interest on lease liaIilit` are recogniaed in profit or loss, unless these are 
included in the carr`ing amount of another asset� 

  Lease pa`ments are apportioned Iet^een finance charges and reduction of lease liaIilit` 
using the incremental Iorro^ing rate to achie]e a constant rate of interest on the remaining 
Ialance of the liaIilit �̀

  Lease liaIilit` pa`aIle in foreign currenc` is translated to local currenc` of the *ompan` i�e� 
7aR 9upees at the reporting date� An` foreign exchange diќerences arising on translation 
of lease liaIilit` are recogniaed in profit or loss�

  9ight-of-use asset  

  After the commencement date, the *ompan` measures the right-of-use asset at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated identified impairment losses, if an ,̀ adQusted 
for an` remeasurement of the lease liaIilit �̀

  The *ompan` depreciates the cost of right-of-use asset, net of residual ]alue, from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset 
or the end of the lease term� /o^e]er, if the lease contract transfers o^nership of the 
underl`ing asset to the *ompan` I` the end of the lease term or if the cost of right-of-
use asset reÅects that the *ompan` ^ill exercise the purchase option, the *ompan` 
depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful 
life of the underl`ing asset� 

  +epreciation is charged to profit or loss at the same rates as used for o^ned asset�

 3.7 Stores and spare parts   
   
  These are ]alued at lo^er of mo]ing a]erage cost and net realiaaIle ]alue ^hile items 

considered oIselete, if an ,̀ are carried at nil ]alue� *ost is determined using the ^eighted 
a]erage method� 0tems in transit are ]alued at cost comprising in]oice ]alue plus other 
charges paid thereon� 7ro]ision is made for oIsolete and slo^ mo]ing stores and spares 
Iased on management»s Iest estimate�    

 3.8 Stock in trade 
   
  These are stated at lo^er of cost and estimated net realiaaIle ]alue�  
 
  *ost comprises all costs of purchase, cost of con]ersion and other costs incurred 

in Iringing in]entories to their present location and condition, the ]aluation has Ieen 
determined as follo^s!

  
9a^ materials and pacRing materials 4o]ing a]erage cost
>orR-in-process and finished goods *ost of direct materials, laIour and

appropriate manufacturing o]erhead 

5et realiaaIle ]alue signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinar` course of Iusiness 
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessar` to maRe the sale �selling 
expenses�� 0f the net realiaaIle ]alue is lo^er than the carr`ing amount, a ^rite-do^n is 
recogniaed for the amount I` ^hich the carr`ing amount exceeds its net realiaaIle ]alue� 
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7ro]ision is made in the financial statements for oIsolete and slo^ mo]ing stocR in trade 
Iased on management estimate�

 3.9 Trade debts

  Trade deIts are recogniaed initiall` at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, 
unless the` contain significant financing component in ^hich case such trade deIts 
are recogniaed at fair ]alue� The *ompan` holds the trade deIts ^ith the oIQecti]e of 
collecting the contractual cash Åo^s and therefore measures the trade deIts suIseXuentl` 
at amortiaed cost using the eќecti]e interest rate method�  Trade recei]aIles are carried 
at original in]oice amount less expected credit loss Iased on a re]ie^ of all outstanding 
amounts at the reporting date� )ad deIts are ^ritten oќ ^hen identified

 3.10 Financial instruments  

  A financial instrument is an` contract that gi]es rise to a financial asset of one entit` and 
a financial liaIilit` or eXuit` instrument of another entit �̀ 

  
 3.10.1	 Financial	assets	-	Classification	and	measurement		 	 	 	

 
  All financial assets are recogniaed at the time ^hen the *ompan` Iecomes a part` to the 

contractual pro]isions of the instrument�

	 3.10.1.1	 Classification 
   
  -inancial assets are classified in either of the three categories! at amortiaed cost, at fair 

]alue through other comprehensi]e income and at fair ]alue through profit or loss� This 
classification is Iased on the *ompan`»s Iusiness model for managing the financial assets 
and the contractual cash Åo^ characteristics of the financial asset� The management 
determines the classification of its financial assets at the time of initial recognition�

 3.10.1.2 Initial recognition and measurement    
   
  All financial assets are initiall` measured at fair ]alue plus transaction costs that are directl` 

attriIutaIle to its acXuisition except for trade recei]aIle� Trade recei]aIles are initiall` 
measured at the transaction price�  

 3.10.1.3 Subsequent measurement

  -inancial assets measured at amortiaed cost are suIseXuentl` measured using the 
,ќecti]e 0nterest 9ate �,09� method� The amortiaed cost is reduced I` impairment losses, 
if an �̀ 0nterest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recogniaed 
in profit or loss�

  
 3.10.1.4 Derecognition

  -inancial assets are derecogniaed ^hen the contractual rights to recei]e cash Åo^s from 
assets ha]e expired� The diќerence Iet^een the carr`ing amount and the consideration 
recei]ed is recogniaed in profit or loss�

	 3.10.1.5	 Impairment	of	financial	assets

  The *ompan` recogniaes an allo^ance for expected credit losses �,*Ls� for all financial 
assets ̂ hich are measured at amortised cost� ,*Ls are Iased on the diќerence Iet^een 
the contractual cash Åo^s due in accordance ̂ ith the contract and all the cash Åo^s that 
the *ompan` expects to recei]e, discounted at an approximation of the original eќecti]e 
interest rate�  
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  ,*Ls are recogniaed in t^o stages� -or credit exposures for ^hich there has not Ieen a 
significant increase in credit risR since initial recognition, ,*Ls are pro]ided for credit losses 
that result from default e]ents that are possiIle ^ithin the next 12-months �a 12-month 
,*L�� -or those credit exposures for ^hich there has Ieen a significant increase in credit 
risR since initial recognition, a loss allo^ance is reXuired for credit losses expected o]er 
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespecti]e of the timing of the default �a lifetime ,*L��

  -or trade recei]aIles, the *ompan` applies a simplified approach in calculating ,*Ls� 
Therefore, the *ompan` does not tracR changes in credit risR, Iut instead recogniaes 
a loss allo^ance Iased on lifetime ,*Ls at each reporting date� The *ompan` has 
estaIlished a pro]ision matrix that is Iased on its historical credit loss experience, adQusted 
for for^ard looRing factors specific to the deItors and the economic en]ironment�

 3.10.2 Financial liabilities
 
 3.10.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement
 
  -inancial liaIilities are initiall` classified at amortiaed cost� :uch liaIilities are recogniaed 

at the time ^hen the *ompan` Iecomes a part` to the contractual pro]isions of the 
instrument�

   
 3.10.2.2 Subsequent measurement     

 
  The *ompan` measures its financial liaIilities suIseXuentl` at amortiaed cost using the 

,09 method� Amortiaed cost is calculated I` taRing into account an` discount or premium 
on acXuisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ,09� The ,09 amortiaation 
is included as finance costs in profit or loss� +iќerence Iet^een carr`ing amount and 
consideration paid is recogniaed in profit or loss ^hen the liaIilities are derecogniaed�

 3.10.3	 Offsetting

  A financial asset and a financial liaIilit` is oќset and the net amount is reported in the 
statement of financial position if the *ompan` has a legall` enforceaIle right to oќset the 
recogniaed amounts and intends either to settle on a net Iasis or to realiae the asset and 
settle the liaIilit` simultaneousl �̀

    
 3.11 Cash and cash equivalents 
   
  *ash and cash eXui]alents are carried at cost� -or the purpose of statement of cash 

Åo^s, these comprise cash in hand and cash at IanR�

 3.12 Provisions 

  7ro]isions are recogniaed ^hen the *ompan` has a present legal or constructi]e 
oIligation as a result of past e]ents and it is proIaIle that an outÅo^ of resources shall Ie 
reXuired to settle the oIligation and the amount has Ieen reliaIl` estimated� 7ro]isions 
are re]ie^ed at each reporting date and adQusted to reÅect the current Iest estimate� 
7ro]isions are not recogniaed for future operating losses�    
   

 3.13 Share capital 
   
  6rdinar` shares are classified as eXuit �̀ 0ncremental costs directl` attriIutaIle to the issue 

of ordinar` shares are recogniaed as a deduction from eXuit ,̀ net of an` tax eќects�

 3.14 Government grants 
   
  .rants from the go]ernment are recognised at their fair ]alue ^here there is a reasonaIle 

assurance that the grant ^ill Ie recei]ed and the *ompan` ^ill compl` ^ith all attached 
conditions� 
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  .o]ernment grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit or loss o]er the 
period necessar` to match them ^ith the costs that the` are intended to compensate�   
    

	 3.15	 Employee	benefits 
   
  The main features of the schemes operated I` the *ompan` for its emplo`ees are as 

follo^s!
    
	 3.15.1	 Defined	benefit	plans	
   
  The *ompan` operates an unfunded gratuit` scheme for all emplo`ees according to the 

terms of emplo`ment suIQect to a minimum Xualif`ing period of ser]ice� ,mplo`ees are 
eligiIle for Ienefits under the gratuit` scheme after completion of one `ear of continuous 
ser]ice� Annual pro]ision is made on the Iasis of actuarial ]aluation to co]er oIligations 
under the scheme for all emplo`ees eligiIle to gratuit` Ienefits irrespecti]e of the 
Xualif`ing period� The amount recogniaed in the statement of financial position represents 
the present ]alue of defined Ienefit oIligation adQusted for unrecogniaed actuarial gains 
and losses�

  Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adQustments and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are charged to other comprehensi]e income in the period in ^hich the` 
arise�

 3.15.2 Accumulating compensated absences 

  The *ompan` also operates an unfunded accumulating compensated aIsences scheme 
and pro]ides for the expected cost of accumulating compensated aIsences, ^hen the 
emplo`ees render ser]ice that increase their entitlement to future compensated aIsences� 
These are treated as other long term emplo`ee Ienefits since these can Ie encashed at 
the time of final settlement� These Ienefits are pro]ided to executi]es onl �̀

  7ro]isions are made annuall` to co]er the oIligation for accumulating compensated 
aIsences for executi]es Iased on actuarial ]aluation and are charged to profit or loss� 
The amount recogniaed in the statement of financial position represents the present ]alue 
of defined Ienefit oIligation� Actuarial gains � losses are recogniaed immediatel` under 
0A: 19 ¸,mplo`ee Ienefits¹ in the statement of profit or loss�    
   

  The *ompan` also pro]ides accumulated compensated aIsences to its non-executi]e 
emplo`ees� These are treated as short term Ienefts since these can Ie encashed 
annuall �̀

 3.16 Taxation
 
  0ncome tax expense comprises current and deferred tax� 0ncome tax is recogniaed in the 

statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recogniaed directl` 
in eXuit` or other comprehensi]e income, in ^hich case it is recogniaed in the statement 
of changes in eXuit ,̀ or other comprehensi]e income, as the case ma` Ie�   
    

 3.16.1 Current 
   
  *urrent income tax assets and liaIilities for the current and prior periods are measured at 

the amount expected to Ie reco]ered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax 
rates and tax la^s that ha]e Ieen enacted or suIstanti]el` enacted I` the reporting date� 
 
The charge for current tax is higher of corporate tax �higher of tax Iased on taxaIle 
income and minimum tax� and alternati]e corporate tax� :uper tax applicaIle on the 
*ompan` is also as per the applicaIle rates as per the 0ncome Tax 6rdinance, 2001� 
/o^e]er, in case of loss for the `ear, income tax expense is recogniaed as minimum tax 
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liaIilit` on turno]er of the *ompan` in accordance ^ith the pro]isions of the 0ncome Tax 
6rdinance, 2001�¹    
 

  *orporate tax is Iased on taxaIle income for the `ear determined in accordance ^ith 
the pre]ailing la^s of taxation� The charge for current tax is calculated using pre]ailing 
tax rates or tax rates expected to appl` to the profit for the `ear if enacted after taRing 
into account tax credits, reIates and exemptions, if an �̀ The charge for current tax also 
includes adQustments, ^here considered necessar ,̀ to pro]ision for tax made in pre]ious 
`ears arising from assessments framed during the `ear for such `ears�   
  

  Alternati]e corporate tax is calculated at 17� of accounting profit, after taRing into
  account the reXuired adQustments�  

 
*urrent tax for current and prior periods, to the extent unpaid is recogniaed as a liaIilit �̀ 
0f the amount alread` paid irrespecti]e of current and prior period exceeds the amount 
due to those periods the excess recogniaed as an asset�

 
  The *ompan` oќsets current tax assets and current tax liaIilities if, and onl` if, it has a 

legall` enforceaIle right to set oќ the recogniaed amounts and intends either to settle on 
a net Iasis, or to realiae the asset and settle the liaIilit` simultaneousl �̀

  The management  periodicall` e]aluates positions  taRen in the tax returns ̂ ith respect to 
situation in ^hich applicaIle tax regulations are suIQect to interpretation and estaIlishes 
pro]ision ^here appropriate�

 3.16.2 Deferred

  +eferred tax is accounted for using the Ialance sheet liaIilit` method in respect of all 
temporar` timing diќerences arising from the diќerence Iet^een the carr`ing amount 
of the assets and liaIilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax Iases 
used in the computation of taxaIle profit� /o^e]er, deferred tax is not accounted for if it 
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liaIilit` in a transaction other than a Iusiness 
comIination that at the time of transaction neither aќects accounting nor taxaIle profit or 
loss�

  +eferred tax liaIilities are recogniaed for all maQor taxaIle temporar` diќerences�

  +eferred tax assets are recogniaed for all maQor deductiIle temporar` diќerences to the 
extent that it is proIaIle that taxaIle profit ^ill Ie a]ailaIle against ^hich deductiIle 
temporar` diќerences, unused tax losses and tax credits can Ie utiliaed.

  
  The carr`ing amount of the deferred tax asset is re]ie^ed at each reporting date and 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer proIaIle that suѝcient taxaIle profit ^ill Ie 
a]ailaIle to allo^ all or part of the deferred tax asset to Ie utiliaed�

  <nrecogniaed deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recogniaed to the extent of proIaIle future taxaIle profit a]ailaIle that ^ill allo^ deferred 
tax asset to Ie reco]ered�    

  
  +eferred tax is calculated at rates that are expected to appl` to the period ^hen the 

diќerences re]erse Iased on the tax rates and tax la^s that ha]e Ieen enacted or ha]e 
Ieen notified for suIseXuent enactment I` the reporting date�

  >hen diќerent tax rates appl` to diќerent le]els of taxaIle income, deferred tax assets 
and liaIilities are measured using the a]erage rates that are expected to appl` to the 
taxaIle profit �tax loss� of the periods in ^hich temporar` diќerences are expected to 
re]erse�    
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  The *ompan` oќsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liaIilities if and onl` if it has 
a legall` enforceaIle right to set oќ current tax assets and current tax liaIilities and the 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liaIilities relate to income taxes le]ied I` the same 
taxation authorit` on either the same taxaIle entit` or diќerent taxaIle entities ^hich 
intend either to settle current tax liaIilities and assets on a net Iasis, or to realiae the 
assets and settle the liaIilities simultaneousl ,̀ in each future period in ^hich significant 
amounts of deferred tax liaIilities or assets are expected to Ie settled or reco]ered�   
  

 3.17 Trade and other payables   
   
  These amounts represent liaIilities for goods and ser]ices pro]ided to the *ompan` 

prior to the end of financial `ear ^hich are unpaid� The amounts are unsecured and 
are usuall` paid ^ithin short period� Trade and other pa`aIles are presented as current 
liaIilities unless pa`ment is not due ^ithin 12 months after the reporting period� The` are 
recogniaed initiall` at their fair ]alue and suIseXuentl` measured at amortiaed cost using 
the eќecti]e interest method�

 
 3.18 Revenue recognition
   
  9e]enue is recogniaed I` appl`ing the follo^ing steps!    

 
 i�  0dentif`ing contract ^ith a customer     

    
 ii�  0dentif`ing performance oIligation in the contract     

    
 iii�  +etermining transaction price of the contract     

    
 i]�  Allocating transaction price to each of the separate performance oIligations in the 

contract 
 ]�  9ecogniaing the re]enue ^hen �or as� the *ompan` satisfies a performance oIligation 

  9e]enue is recogniaed ^hen or as performance oIligations are satisfied I` transferring 
control of a promised good or ser]ice to a customer and the control transfers at a point 
in time at an amount that reÅects the consideration to ^hich the *ompan` expects 
to Ie entitled to in exchange for those goods� 9e]enue is measured at the fair ]alue 
of the consideration recei]ed or recei]aIle, excluding discounts, reIates and other 
considerations pa`aIle to customers, is recognised ^hen goods are dispatched from the 
factor` to customer ^hereas re]enue of export sales is recogniaed on date of issue of Iill 
of lading�

  
 3.19 Refund liabilities 
   
  *ertain contracts pro]ide a customer ^ith a right of return the goods ^ithin the specified 

period� Therefore, a refund liaIilities �included in trade and other pa`aIles� are recogniaed 
for the products expected to Ie returned and for estimated discounts �trade promotions 
and incenti]es� pa`aIle to certain customers� These estimates are made I` management 
Iased on past historical trends adQusted on the Iasis of current oIser]aIle data, ^hich 
in]ol]es the exercise of significant management Qudgment due to ^hich it is highl` 
proIaIle that a significant re]ersal in the cumulati]e re]enue recogniaed ^ill not occur� 
The ]alidit` of this assumption and the estimated amount of returns � discounts  are 
reassessed at each reporting date� 

 
 3.20 Contract asset 
   
  A contract asset is recogniaed for the *ompan`»s right to consideration in exchange 

for goods or ser]ices that it has transferred to a customer� 0f the *ompan` performs I` 
transferring goods or ser]ices to a customer Iefore the customer pa`s consideration or 
Iefore pa`ment is due, the *ompan` presents the amount as a contract asset, excluding 
an` amounts presented as a recei]aIle�
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 3.21 Contract liability 
   
  A contract liaIilit` is recogniaed for the *ompan`»s oIligation to transfer goods or 

ser]ices to a customer for ^hich the *ompan` has recei]ed consideration �or an amount 
of consideration is due� from the customer� 0f a customer pa`s consideration, or the 
*ompan` has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional �i�e� a recei]aIle�, 
Iefore the *ompan` transfers a good or ser]ice to the customer, the *ompan` shall 
present the contract as a contract liaIilit` ^hen the pa`ment is made or the pa`ment is 
due �^hiche]er is earlier�� 

 
 3.22 Borrowings cost 
   
  )orro^ing costs directl` attriIutaIle to acXuisition, construction or production of Xualif`ing 

assets, ^hich are assets that necessaril` taRe a suIstantial period of time to get read` for 
their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets 
are suIstantiall` read` for their intended use� All other Iorro^ing costs are recogniaed in 
profit or loss as incurred�     
   

 3.23 Foreign currency transactions and balances  
   
  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into 7aR 9upees I` appl`ing the 

foreign exchange rate ruling on the date of transaction� 4onetar` assets and liaIilities 
denominated in foreign currencies as at the reporting date are translated into 7aR 
9upees at the exchange rate pre]ailing at that date� 4onetar` translation diќerences are 
recogniaed in of profit or loss�    
 

 3.24 Earnings per share   
   
  The *ompan` presents Iasic and diluted earnings per share �,7:�� )asic ,7: is calculated 

I` di]iding the profit or loss attriIutaIle to ordinar` shareholders of the *ompan` I` the 
^eighted a]erage numIer of ordinar` shares outstanding during the `ear� +iluted ,7: is 
determined I` adQusting the profit or loss attriIutaIle to ordinar` shareholders and the 
^eighted a]erage numIer of ordinar` shares outstanding for the eќects of all diluti]e 
potential ordinar` shares, if an �̀

 3.25 Related party transactions   
   
  Transactions ̂ ith related parties are Iased on the transfer pricing polic` that all transactions 

Iet^een the *ompan` and the related part` or Iet^een t^o or more segments of the 
*ompan` are at arm»s length Iasis determined using the comparaIle uncontrolled price 
method except in circumstances ^here it is not in the interest of the *ompan` to do so�  
  

 3.26 Segment reporting 
   
  6perating segments are reported in a manner consistent ^ith the internal reporting 

pro]ided to the *hief 6perating +ecision 4aRer �the *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer of the  
*ompan`�� :egment results, assets and liaIilities include items directl` attriIutaIle to a 
segment� :egment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the ̀ ear to acXuire 
propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment and intangiIle assets�    
  

 3.27 Dividend distribution 
   
  +i]idend distriIution to *ompan`»s shareholders is recogniaed as a liaIilit` in the period 

in ^hich the di]idends are appro]ed�
 
 3.28 Biological assets 
   
  )iological assets comprise of trees� These are measured at fair ]alue less estimated costs 

to sell� -air ]alue of trees is determined on the Iasis of marRet prices of similar items in 
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local areas� *osts to sell include all costs that are necessar` to sell the assets, excluding 
costs necessar` to get the assets to the marRet� 

  
  .ains or losses arising from changes in fair ]alue less costs to sell trees are recogniaed in 

proft or loss�

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  
     June 30, 1une30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees

  6perating fixed assets 4�1   622,300,506   644,779,914  
  *apital ^orR-in-progress 4�6   -     23,313,888  
     
      622,300,506   668,093,802  

  
	 4.1	 Operating	fixed	assets   

   Buildings Leasehold Plant and  Furniture Electric Computer 
 Freehold on freehold improve- machinery Vehicles and installations hardware  Total
	 land	 land	 ments	 	 	 fittings	 	 	
     ------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------

*ost
         
)alance as at 1ul` 01, 2021  15,547   195,722,525   19,676,817   1,039,075,210   9,934,922   13,519,728   72,469,398   17,791,172  1,368,205,319 
Additions  -     1,539,029   2,900,287   57,698,567   239,414   2,296,873   3,931,584   4,447,200   73,052,954  
+isposals  -     -     -     �2,738,410�  �192,384�  �42,325�  �187,160�  �225,131�  �3,385,410�
         
)alance as at 1une 30, 2022  15,547   197,261,554   22,577,104   1,094,035,367   9,981,952   15,774,276   76,213,822   22,013,241  1,437,872,863 
Additions  -     11,327,653   -     8,234,058   -     6,652,433   2,500,608   5,090,390   33,805,142 
+isposals  -     -     -     �9,703,432�  -     -     -     -     �9,703,432�

)alance as at 1une 30, 2023  15,547   208,589,207   22,577,104   1,092,565,993   9,981,952   22,426,709   78,714,430   27,103,631  1,461,974,573 
         
9ate of depreciation - �  -    10� 20�  2�5� to 10�  20� 20�  20� to 33�  20� -
         
Accumulated depreciation         
         
)alance as at 1ul` 01, 2021  -     117,761,125   983,839   548,762,962   4,796,023   6,740,439   52,378,605   9,365,192   740,788,185 
+epreciation charged for the `ear  -     7,873,092   3,978,509   33,841,222   555,213   1,636,891   4,626,017   2,387,368   54,898,312 
+isposals  -     -     -     �2,310,761�  �140,098�  �42,117�  �51,106�  �49,466�  �2,593,548�
         
)alance at 1une 30, 2022  -     125,634,217   4,962,348   580,293,423   5,211,138   8,335,213   56,953,516   11,703,094   793,092,949 
+epreciation charged for the `ear  -     7,540,310   3,522,951   34,772,258   433,563   1,698,583   4,071,089   3,140,346   55,179,100 
+isposals  -     -     -     �8,597,982�  -     -     -     -     �8,597,982�

)alance at 1une 30, 2023  -     133,174,527   8,485,299   606,467,699   5,644,701   10,033,796   61,024,605   14,843,440   839,674,067 
         
*arr`ing amount         
         
As at 1une 30, 2022  15,547   71,627,337   17,614,756   513,741,944   4,770,814   7,439,063   19,260,306   10,310,147   644,779,914 
         
As at 1une 30, 2023  15,547   75,414,680   14,091,805   486,098,294   4,337,251   12,392,913   17,689,825   12,260,191   622,300,506  

 4�1�1 The depreciation charge for the period has Ieen allocated as follo^s!

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees

 *ost of sales  26   45,465,538   41,714,312  
 Administration expenses 27   8,700,263   12,487,212 
 +istriIution and marReting expenses 28   1,013,299   696,788 
 
       55,179,100   54,898,312
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 4.2  There is no propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment disposed oќ during the `ear ha]ing indi]idual
  net IooR ]alue exceeding 9s� 500,000 or more�

 4.3 7articulars of immo]aIle propert` �land and Iuilding� of the *ompan` are as follo^!
  

Location Usage of immovable property Total area

Renala Khurd, Okara, Pakistan Production plant and warehouse 46.762 acres

    
 4.4  The cost of full` depreciated assets that are still in use as at the reporting date is 9s� 40�96 

million �2022! 9s� 40�25 million��
 4.5 Security 
  
  The propert̀ , plant and eXuipment of the *ompan  ̀are suIQect to first and Qoint pari passu charge   
  as securit̀  for certain financing I  ̀IanRs �5ote 16 and 5ote 22�� 
   
 4.6 Capital work in progress

                       Civil works                   Others                     Total
  2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

 Opening balance    17,376,186   4,377,494   5,937,702   4,304,044   23,313,888   8,681,538 
Additions during the year     -     12,998,692   3,773,184   33,622,269   3,773,184   46,620,961

  17,376,186   17,376,186   9,710,886   37,926,313   27,087,072   55,302,499

Transferred to property,          
plant and equipment    (17,376,186)  -     (8,865,042)  (31,988,611)  (26,241,228)  (31,988,611)
Charged	to	profit	or	loss		 	 	-				 	-				 	�845�844�	 	-				 	�845�844�	 	-		

  -     17,376,186    -    5,937,702   -     23,313,888

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS  
     June 30, 1une30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees

  *omputer soft^ares 5�1  30,350,731   4,191,050 
  *apital ^orR-in-progress 5�2  -     22,394,508 
     
      30,350,731   26,585,558 

 5.1 Computer softwares   
     
 5et carr`ing ]alue - opening Ialance   4,191,050   3,267,258 
 Additions during the `ear   28,703,258   1,603,975 
 Amortiaation during the `ear  5�1�1   �2,543,577�  �680,183�
 
 5et carr`ing ]alue as at 1une 30   30,350,731   4,191,050 

 .ross *arr`ing =alue

 *ost    41,921,983   13,218,725 
 Accumulated amortiaation   �11,571,252�  �9,027,675�

 5et IooR ]alue   30,350,731   4,191,050 
   
 Amortiaation rate  20� 20�
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  June 30, June 30  
  2023 2022
  Rupees 9upees
 

 5.1.1 Amortization charge for the year has been allocated 

  as follows:   

    
 *ost of sales 26  63,960   12,112 
 Administrati]e expenses 27  2,019,379   580,917 
 :elling and distriIution expenses 28  460,238   87,154
 
     2,543,577   680,183 
    
 5.2 Capital work-in-progress   

    
 6pening Ialance    22,394,508   8,995,310 
 Additions   6,308,750   15,003,173 
 Transferred to computer soft^are   �28,703,258�  �1,603,975�

 *losing Ialance    -     22,394,508

6. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 

  Trees 6�1  2,444,402   1,550,000 

 6.1 Reconciliation of carrying amounts of biological assets

         2023    2022
         Trees   Livestock    Trees    Total 
         Rupees   Rupees    Rupees    Rupees   

 *arr`ing amount at the 
       Ieginning of the `ear   1,550,000   36,290,000   1,500,000   37,790,000   

  
   *hanges in fair ]alue   894,402   -     50,000   50,000 
  
  Less! +ecrease due to deaths 
  
 sale   -     �36,290,000�  -     �36,290,000�
  *arr`ing amount at the end of 
  the `ear ^hich  approximates
  the fair ]alue less cost to sell   2,444,402   -     1,550,000   1,550,000

 6.2 As at the reporting date, the Company beneficially owns 487 (2022: 402) trees of various 

kinds including Guava, Lemon and Mangoes etc.

     

 6.3 The fair value of these assets is determined by an independent valuer. Latest valuation of 

these assets was carried out on June 30, 2023. Level 2 fair value of biological assets has 

been determined using market value approach. 
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  June 30, June 30  
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees
7. LONG TERM DEPOSITS

 Lahore Electric Supply Company   1,224,780   1,224,780 
 Security deposit - Ijarah   -     310,000 
 Others   -     6,763 

     1,224,780   1,541,543  
   
8 STORES AND SPARES   
 General stores   12,744,891   14,441,697 
 Engineering stores   44,826,814   31,119,902 

     57,571,705   45,561,599   
   

 8.1 :tores and spares include items ^hich ma` result in fixed capital expenditure Iut are
  not distinguishaIle�

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
9� :T6*2 05 T9A+,    

 
 Raw materials   68,870,835   41,972,572 
 Packing materials   149,252,054   142,584,118 
 Work-in-process   180,241,135   92,569,218 
 -inished goods 9�1  148,706,888   156,706,393
 
     547,070,912   433,832,301
 
 Less! 7ro]ision for oIsolete stocR 9�2  �26,332,238�  �2,867,007�

     520,738,674   430,965,294 
  
 9�1 This includes goods in transit pertaining to finished goods amounting to 9s� 5il �2022! 9s�
  13�11 million��

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees
 9.2 Provision for slow moving stock    

 6pening Ialance   2,867,007   444,185 
 Provision for the year   23,465,231  2,422,822 
    
     26,332,238   2,867,007 

 9�3 +uring the `ear, the *ompan` has ^ritten oќ stocR in trade amounting to 9s� 55�482
  million �2022! 9s� 87�78 million�, ^hich ^as recogniaed as an expense in the cost of
  sales�    

 
 9�4 :tocRs of the *ompan` are pledged against short term Iorro^ings oItained from
  ]arious IanRs �9efer to note 22��  
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    June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
10. TRADE DEBTS   
  
 Local debtors (Unsecured - considered good)   125,792,879   156,939,716 
 Local debtors (Unsecured - considered doubtful)   57,908,180   29,093,679 
 Foreign debtors (Considered good) 10.2  66,061,514   45,120,000 

     249,762,573   231,153,395 
 Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) 10.1  (57,908,180)  (29,093,679)

     191,854,393   202,059,716  

 10.1 Allowance for expected credit losses (ECL)   
     
  Opening balance   29,093,679   15,638,501 
  Add: Allowance for impairment for the year   28,814,501   13,455,178 
  Less! Trade deIts ^ritten oќ   -     -   

  Closing balance   57,908,180   29,093,679   
    

 10.2 Detail of trade receivables from export sales 
 
 

Jurisdiction
Export Sales
During the

Year

Gross 
Receivables
at Year End

Default 
Amount

Names of
Defaulting 

Parties

Legal 
Action
Taken

Rupees Rupees Rupees  N/A
Canada  168,586,135  55,758,607 - No default  N/A
United

Arab Emirates
 102,181,718 - - No default  N/A

United States of

America

 80,541,155 - - No default  N/A

Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia

 72,528,555 - - No default  N/A

Europe  66,243,688  10,302,907 - No default  N/A
Others  24,241,860  -  - No default  N/A
Total  514,323,111  66,061,514 -

  

 10.3 The Company has received security deposit amounting to Rs. 7.9 million (2022: Rs. 7.9 
million) from a customer against the receviables. 
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
     (Re-arranged)
11. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND 
 OTHER RECEIVABLE     

   
 Advances (Unsecured)  
  -Employees (Considered good)   6,778,570   6,467,770 
  -Letter of credit (Considered good)   -     11,817,807 
  -Suppliers and others
  -Considered good   18,260,047   28,206,073 
  -Considered doubtful   4,675,095   -   
   
    29,713,712   46,491,650 
 Claims recoverable from the government 
 - (Considered good)
  -Sales tax - net   29,806,089   59,259,934 
  -Custom duty and surcharge   -     6,412,099 
 Security deposits 11.1  5,524,000   5,214,000 
 Prepayments   2,469,058   2,005,176 
 Other receivables (Unsecured- considered good) 11.2  1,285,879   8,143,579
 
     68,798,738  127,526,438 
 Less: Loss allowance against doutful advances
  and other receivables   (4,675,095)  -   

     64,123,643  127,526,438 
      
 11.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 3.6 million (2022: Rs. 3.6 million) paid as a security deposit 

to Vanguard Books (Private) Limited, an associated Company, against the rented head 
oѝce Iuilding at reporting date� The maximum amount outstanding during the `ear ^as 
Rs. 3.6 million (2022: Rs.3.6 million). 

 11.2 This includes receivable from Mr. S.M. Mehdi Mohsin amounting to Rs. 0.35 million (2022: 
Rs. 0.11 million), a related party. The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end 
of any month during the year amounts to Rs. 1.39 million (2022: Rs. 0.59 million).  

  
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

12. INCOME TAX RECOVERABLE - NET     
   

 Opening balance   118,506,475   131,118,740 
 Add: Payments / adjustments   23,394,709   18,487,903 
 Less: Charge for the year   (33,091,451)  (32,217,422)
 Prior year adjustment   (196,426)  1,117,254 
    
     108,613,307   118,506,475    

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES   
    
 Cash at bank in current accounts   2,836,041   8,301,666 
 Cash at Bank in saving account 13.1  16,563,311   11,409,980 
 Special account related to dividend payable   1,912,754   1,912,754 
    
     21,312,106   21,624,400 

 13.1 The sa]ing account earns marRup at Åoating rates Iased on dail` IanR deposit rates 
ranging from 13.00% to 20.51% (2022: 7.00% to 11.50%) per annum approximately.
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 14. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL    

 June 30, June 30,   June 30, June 30,  
2023   2022   2023 2022

  (Number of Shares)   Rupees Rupees
   
  16,417,990   16,417,990  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully 
   paid in cash  164,179,900   164,179,900 
    
  6,412,990   6,412,990  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each allotted
    as bonus shares   64,129,900   64,129,900 
    
  44,020   44,020  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued 440,200   440,200
   as consideration other than cash  
      
  22,875,000   22,875,000    228,750,000   228,750,000 

 14.2 Shares held by related parties are as follows:     
  

    2023  2022 2023 2023
                                                                 ( Percentage)                     (Percentage) 

  Mr. Syed Mohammad Mehdi
   Mohsin 20.415% 20.415%  4,669,872   4,669,872 
  4s� :`eda 4atanat .haќar  20�206� 20�206�  4,622,172   4,622,172 
  Ms. Syeda Maimanat Mohsin  20.420% 20.420%  4,671,072   4,671,072 
  Mr. Rizwan Bashir 0.0066% 0.0066%  1,501   1,501 
  Ms. Umme Kulsum Imam 0.0143% 0.0143%  3,267   3,267 
  Ms. Naila Bhatti 0.0000% 0.0115%  -     2,625 
  Mr. Abdul Hamid Ahmad Dagia  0.0219% 0.0219%  5,000   5,000 
  4r� :hahaad .haќar 0�0063� 0�0063�  1,452   1,452 
  Mr. Syed Manzar Hassan 0.0063% 0.0063%  1,452   1,452 
  Mr. Najam Aziz Sethi 0.0063% 0.0063%  1,452   1,452 

       13,977,240   13,979,865
 
 14.3 During the year, there has been no movement in the ordinary share capital of the Company.
  
 14.3 The terms of agreement between the Company and certain lenders impose restrictions 

on the distribution of dividend by the Company. 

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees

15. RESERVES   
    
 Capital reserve 
 - Share premium   609,335,878   609,335,878

 Revenue reserves 
 - General reserve   300,000   300,000 
 - Accumulated loss     

  (694,639,815)  (635,449,464)

     (85,003,937)  (25,813,586)
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
16. LONG TERM FINANCES - SECURED   
    
 Loan for wages and salaries
  - Habib Bank Limited  16.1 & 16.2  -     14,949,499 
 Less: Current portion shown
     under current liabilities 20  -     (14,949,499)
    
     -     -   

  16.1 0n `ear 2021, the *ompan` a]ailed the :tate )anR of 7aRistan 9efinance :cheme for 
payment of salaries and wages from Habib Bank Limited of Rs. 60 million. The loan was 
repayable in 8 equal quarterly installments starting from January 1, 2021. This facility 
along ^ith other running finance facilit` ^as secured I` Qoint pari passu charge o]er 
present and future current assets and fixed assets of the *ompan` amounting to 9s� 
304 million and Rs. 206 million respectively. The facility carried interest rate of 2% (2022: 
2�� per annum� The eќecti]e rate of interest used for discounting of the loan ^as 8�68� 
(2022: 8.68%) per annum.

    

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
 16.2 The reconciliation of carrying amount
  is as follows:    

 
 Opening balance  14,949,499   43,408,390 
 Loan received during the year   -    -
 Repayments during the year   (15,000,000)  (30,000,000)

     (50,501)  13,408,390 
 0nterest charged using the eќecti]e rate of interest   324,404   2,216,725 
 0nterest pa`ments paid during the `ear   �273,903�  �675,616�
 Closing balance   -     14,949,499 
 
17. DEFERRED GRANT   
    
 6pening Ialance   125,297   1,815,994 
 Deferred grant recognized during the year   -     -   
 *redited to profit or loss 31  �125,297�  �1,690,697�

     -     125,297 
 *urrent portion sho^n under current liaIilities 20  -     �125,297�

 Closing balance   -     -    
 
 17.1 This represents Government grant recognized against the loan obtained from SBP 

9efinance :cheme for pa`ment of salaries and ^ages as referred to in note 16�1�  
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
18. DEFERRED LIABILITIES   
  
 9etirement and other Ienefits 18�1  137,780,224   132,154,811 
 +eferred income 18�2  3,228,111   3,586,790    

  
    141,008,335   135,741,601    
  
 18�1 9etirement and other Ienefits    
 
 :taќ gratuit` 18�1�1  124,007,195   109,859,964 
 Accumulated compensated aIsences - ,xecuti]e 18�1�2  12,427,444   11,454,178 
 6ther emplo`ment Ienefit - 5on executi]e   1,345,585   10,840,669 
    
     137,780,224   132,154,811 

 18.1.1	 Staff	gratuity	-	unfunded	 	 	 	  
 

 The *ompan` operates an unfunded gratuit` scheme co]ering its permanent emplo`ees
 suIQect to completion of minimum prescriIed period of ser]ice� Actuarial ]aluation of the
 scheme is carried out annuall` I` an independent actuar �̀ Latest actuarial ]aluation ̂ as carried
 out as at 1une 30, 2023� -ollo^ing Re` information ^as included in that actuarial report!  

 
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

 18.1.1.1	 Movement	in	liability	for	staff	gratuity	 	 	 	
     
 6pening Ialance   109,859,964   94,379,592 
 *harge for the `ear   
  - *urrent ser]ice cost   20,612,160   18,878,774 
  - 0nterest cost   13,250,918   8,055,101
 
   18�1�1�3  33,863,078   26,933,875 
    
 )enefits due Iut not paid   �5,560,958�  �1,432,167�
 )enefits paid   �14,145,107�  �26,225,003�
 Remeasurements recorded in other comprehensive income   
  - Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions   484,684   486,531 
  - ,xperience adQustments   �494,466�  15,717,136
 
     �9,782�  16,203,667 
    
 *losing Ialance   124,007,195   109,859,964    

 

 18.1.1.�	 Actuarial	assumptions	 	 	 	
     
 +iscount rate - per annum  16�25� 13�25�
 ,xpected rate of increase in salar` le]el - per annum  15�25� 12�25�
 A]erage duration of liaIilit`   9 `ears   9 `ears 
 ,xpected mortalit` rate         :L0* 2001-2005 :etIacR 1 @ear  
 Actuarial valuation method            Projected unit credit method  
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees
 18.1.3 The charge for the year has been 
  allocated as under:

  *ost of re]enue 26  15,915,648   12,658,922 
  Administrati]e expenses 27  9,143,031   7,272,146 
  :elling and distriIution expenses 28  8,804,400   7,002,807
 
     33,863,079   26,933,875 

 18.1.4 Estimated expenses to be Charged for
   the year 2023-2024    2024           

  *urrent ser]ice cost    18,499,861 
  0nterest cost    19,101,904 

      37,601,765 

	 18.1.5	 Year	end	sensitivity	analysis	on	defined	
	 	 benefit	obligation

  7eriod end sensiti]it` anal`sis on present ]alue
   of defined Ienefit oIligation!       

  +iscount rate � 100 Ips   113,750,231   100,790,525 
  +iscount rate - 100 Ips   135,966,193   120,499,816 
  0ncrease in salar` le]el � 100 Ips   136,060,800   120,573,189 
  0ncrease in salar` le]el - 100 Ips   113,502,086   100,577,204

  The *ompan` faces the follo^ing risRs on account of staќ gratuit` scheme!

  - -inal :alar` 9isR ¶ the risR that the final salar` at the time of cessation of ser]ice is
  greater than ^hat ^e assumed� :ince the Ienefit is calculated on the final salar ,̀ ^hich
  ^ill closel` reÅect inÅation and other macroeconomic factors, the Ienefit amount
  increases as salar` increases�

  - 4ortalit` 9isR - The risR that the actual mortalit` experience is diќerent than the
  assumed mortalit �̀ This eќect is more pronounced in schemes ^here the age and
  ser]icedistriIution is on the higher side�

  - >ithdra^al 9isR - The risR of actual ^ithdra^als experience is diќerent from assumed
  ^ithdra^al proIaIilit �̀ The significance of the ^ithdra^al risR ]aries ^ith the age,
  ser]ice and the entitled Ienefits of the Ieneficiar �̀ 

 18.1.6 The comparati]e statement of present ]alue of defined Ienefit oIligations is as under!   
 

    2023  2022 2021  2020 2019
    (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)
      
  7resent ]alue of defined     
  Ienefit oIligation  124,007,195   109,859,964   94,379,592  114,561,553 114,858,662
  -air ]alue of plan asset  -     -     -     -     -   
  5et liaIilit`  124,007,195   109,859,964   94,379,592   114,561,553   114,858,662 
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

 18.1.2 Accumulated compensated absences  
     
  Opening liability    11,454,178   5,072,566 
  Charge for the year 18.1.2.1  7,362,904   10,631,400 
  Payments made during the period   (2,938,369)  (2,760,738)

     15,878,713   12,943,228 
  Current portion shown under current liability   (3,451,269)  (1,489,050)

  Liability as at period end   12,427,444   11,454,178 
   
 18.1.2.1 The charge for the year has been allocated as under:   
  
  Cost of revenue   2,793,486   4,033,553 
  Administrative expenses   1,580,079   2,281,498 
  Selling and distribution expenses   2,989,339   4,316,349 

     7,362,904   10,631,400 
   
 18.1.2.2 Actuarial assumptions   
   
  Discount rate - per annum  16.25% 13.25%
  Expected rate of increase in salary level - per annum  15.25% 

12.25%
  Average duration of liability   9 years   9 years 
  Expected mortality rate         SLIC 2001-2005 Setback 1 Year  
  Actuarial valuation method            Projected unit credit method  
   
 18.1.2.3 Period end sensitivity analysis on present value of
   defined Ienefit oIligation!   
   
  Discount rate + 100 bps   11,353,478   10,420,258 
  Discount rate - 100 bps   13,683,427   12,683,468 
  Increase in salary level + 100 bps   13,663,873   12,700,319 
  Increase in salary level - 100 bps   11,353,748   10,388,348 
   
 18.2 Deferred income   
   
  This represent assets donated to the Company by World Health Organization, recognized
  and amortized in accordance with the Company’s policy. The movement in the deferred 

income during the `ear is as follo^s!

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees

  Opening balance   3,586,790   3,985,322 

  Amortization during the year   (358,679)  (398,532)

  Closing balance   3,228,111   3,586,790  
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
19. DEFERRED TAXATION   
  
  The asset for deferred taxation comprises
   temporar` diќerences relating to!   
   
 - Accelerated tax depreciation 
 amortiaation   86,112,328   89,431,437 
 - ,mplo`ee retirement Ienefits   �33,830,970�  �33,583,813�
 - 7ro]isions   �46,916,003�  �17,501,954�
 - +eferred income   �792,640�  �933,220�
 - <naIsorIed depreciation and amortiaation   �120,209,318�  �108,535,531�
 - )usiness losses   �253,716,795�  �312,410,000�
 - <nused tax credits a]ailaIle � minimum tax   �140,261,633�  �152,441,876�

 - +eferred tax asset   �509,615,031�  �535,974,957�
 - <nrecogniaed deferred tax asset   509,615,031   535,974,957

    - - 

 19.1 )usiness tax losses and unused tax credits a]ailaIle against ̂ hich deferred tax asset has 
not Ieen recogniaed, ^ill expire as follo^s!

   Serial Number Business Losses              Unused Tax  Tax Year in
     Available Which Loss   

   Will Expire
     
   1  7,631,685   -    2024
   2  274,816,721   28,692,504  2025
   3  22,586,644   27,719,370  2026
   4  55,628,938   27,833,938  2027
   5  514,221,511   28,067,601  2028
   6  -     27,948,220  2029
     874,885,499   140,261,633 

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

20. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT
  LIABILITIES       

 
   *urrent portion of long term finance  16  -     14,949,499 
   *urrent portion of deferred grant  17  -     125,297 
    
     -     15,074,796 
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES   (Re-arranged) 

  Trade creditors   409,923,783   502,932,552 
  Accrued liaIilities   74,827,219   89,492,800 
  *ontract liaIilities 21�1  40,458,853   35,877,179 
  9efund liaIilities � pro]ision 
  against sales return    72,052,355   39,307,211 
  :ecurit` deposits 21�2  9,518,486   9,218,486 
  >orRers» ^elfare fund   1,437,860   1,437,860 
  7ro]ision for duties pa`aIles   13,560,527   15,900,713 
  7a`aIle to emplo`ees   6,148,147   5,221,806 
  >itholding sales tax pa`aIle   13,937,046   1,930,347 
  >ithholding income tax   25,445,031   2,111,904 
  6thers   1,245,949   6,009,932 

     668,555,256   709,440,790
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 21.1 This represents amount received in advance from customers against sales made 
subsequent to the year end. Revenue recognized during the year that was included in 
contract liabilities balance as at the beginning of the period amounts to Rs. 35.87 million 
(2022: Rs. 37.38 million).    

 21.1.2 This includes amount payable to Mr. S.M. Mehdi Mohsin amounting to Rs. Nil (June 30, 
2022: Rs. 1.93 million), a related party.     
  

 21.2 These security deposits are received from various customers. As per signed agreement, 
the Company has the right to utilize the amounts of these security deposits for the 
purpose of business; hence the amounts are not required to be kept in a separate bank 
account maintained in a scheduled bank.     
     

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

22. FINANCES UNDER MARKUP ARRANGEMENTS       
 

  
  Finances under Markup 
  Arrangements-secured 22.1 302,002,267 341,059,804 
       

 
 22.1  This represents running finance and export refinance facilities a]ailed from ]arious IanRs 

to meet the working capital requirements of the Company with a cumulative sanctioned 
limit amounting to Rs. 360 million (2022: Rs. 367 million). Mark up on these facilities 
ranges from 1 to 3 months KIBOR plus  0.5% to 3.5% margin per anum  (2022: 1 to 
3 months KIBOR plus 0.5% to 2.5% margin per anum) and is payable on quarterly 
basis. The above balance represents the utilized portion of the funded facilities. The 
Company has also utilized un-funded facilities amounting to Rs. 17.2 million (2022: Rs. 
17.2 million). Unutilized amount of funded and unfunded facilities are Rs. 40.80 million 
(2022: Rs. 25.94 million). In addition to this the Company also has Rs. 100 million (2022: 
Rs. 100 million) unfunded facilities for opening letter of credits out of which the amount 
utilized at the period end is Rs. 31.59 million (2022: Rs. 36.52 million).

 22.2 The aggregate short term facilities are secured I` a first and Qoint pari passu charge 
on the present and future fixed assets of the *ompan ,̀ stores and spares, stocR in 
trade and trade debts -unsecured and subordination of loan from related parties of the 
Company.

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

23. LOAN FROM RELATED PARTIES - UNSECURED       
 

  
  Loan from related parties - Interest free       23.1& 23.4 150,000,000   150,000,000 
  Loan from related partirs - Interest bearing 23.2 & 23.3  166,000,000   75,000,000
 
   23.5   316,000,000   225,000,000 
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
 23.1 Loan from related parties - Interest free

  
  Ms. Syeda Maimanat Mohsin   75,000,000   75,000,000 
  4s� :`eda 4atanat .haќar   75,000,000   75,000,000 
    
     150,000,000   150,000,000   

 
 23.2 Loan from related parties - Interest bearing   
     
  Mr. Najam Aziz Sethi   66,000,000   50,000,000 
  Ms. Mira Sethi   35,000,000   -   
  4s� :`eda 4atanat .haќar   65,000,000   25,000,000
 
     166,000,000   75,000,000 
 
       23.3 These loans carry mark-up @ 1 to 3 months KIBOR plus 1% to 1.5% margin (2022:    

 7.00% - 8.84%) per annum.

 23.4 These loans are suIordinated to finances under marRup arrangements oItained from
  Allied Bank Limited (Note: 22).

 23.5 These loans are repayble on demand  
     
24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

 24.1 Contingencies

 24.1.1 Income tax

  Following are the various contingencies relating to Income tax matters:   
   

 (i) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (‘DCIR’) raised demands amounting to Rs. 
6.18 million including default surcharge against the Company vide various orders issued 
relating to tax year 2007 and 2008 under section 161 of Income Tax Ordinance 2001 
(‘ITO 2001’) on account of non-withholding of taxes while making certain payments. The 
*ompan` filed appeals ^ith the *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� *09�A�, ^hich 
were partially decided against the Company. Being aggrieved with orders of CIR(A), 
*ompan` filed appeals Iefore the Appellate TriIunal 0nland 9e]enue �ºAT09»�� The case 
is pending against ATIR and the Company on the basis of opinion of the tax advisor is 
hopeful of favorable outcome of the case.

 (ii) The DCIR raised demands amounting to Rs. 14.88 million including default surcharge 
against the Company vide various orders issued relating to tax year 2011, 2012, and 
2016 under section 161 of ITO 2001 on account of non-withholding of taxes while 
maRing certain pa`ments� The *ompan` filed appeals ^ith the *09�A�, ^hich ^ere 
partiall` decided against the *ompan �̀ )eing aggrie]ed the *ompan` filed appeals 
before the ATIR. The case is pending against ATIR and the Company on the basis of 
opinion of the tax advisor is hopeful of favorable outcome of the case.
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 (iii) The Additional *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �ºAd*09»� under section 122 of 0T6 2001 
]ide order dated 4a` 28, 2013 in respect of tax `ear 2011, raised a demand of 9s� 
27�62 million on account of disallo^ance of certain expenditures and adQustment of 
minimum tax of prior `ears� The *ompan` paid the said demand and under protest 
preferred an appeal Iefore the *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� ^hich ^as 
partiall` decided in *ompan`»s fa]or resulting in a refund of 9s� 18�93 million ]ide order 
dated 6ctoIer 23, 2013� -or further refund, the *ompan` filed an appeal Iefore the 
Appellate TriIunal 0nland 9e]enue �ºAT09»� ^hich ^as decided against the *ompan` 
]ide order dated 4arch 18, 2020� )eing aggrie]ed, the *ompan` filed an appeal in 
/onoraIle Lahore /igh *ourt, ^hich is pending adQudication� The *ompan` on the 
Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (iv) The Additional *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �ºAd*09»� under section 122 of 0T6 2001 
]ide order dated 4arch 28, 2014 in respect of tax `ear 2013, raised a demand of 9s 
39�47 million on account of disallo^ance of certain expenditures under section 21 �l� 
and 21 �m� of 0ncome Tax 6rdinance 2001� The *ompan` preferred an appeal Iefore 
the *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� ^hich ^as partiall` decided in fa]or of the 
*ompan` ]ide order dated 1ul` 14, 2014 resulting in reduction of demand to 9s 8�57 
million� )eing aggrie]ed, the *ompan` filed an appeal Iefore Appellate TriIunal 0nland 
9e]enue �ºAT09»� on August 18, 2014 for the remaining grounds relating to proration 
of expenses in respect of export sales, ^hich has Ieen remanded IacR for fresh 
proceedings ]ide order dated 4arch 31, 2022 ^hich are still pending� The *ompan` on 
the Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (v) The Ad*09 under section 122 of 0T6 2001 ]ide order dated 5o]emIer 30, 2015 in 
respect of tax ̀ ear 2014, raised a demand of 9s 27�27 million on account of proration of 
expenses and disallo^ance of certain expenditures under section 21 �c�, 24 of 0ncome 
Tax 6rdinance 2001 � The *ompan` preferred an appeal Iefore the *ommissioner 
0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� ^hich ^as partiall` decided in fa]or of the *ompan` ]ide 
order dated 1anuar` 25, 2016 resulting in reduction of demand to 9s 0�698 million� 
-urther the *ompan` has approached the concerned taxation oѝcer for a]ailing the 
appeal eќect order in light of the order of the *09�A�, in response to ^hich the Ad*09 
passed the order under section 124 read ^ith section 129 of 0T6, 2001, dated 1une 24, 
2017, ^hich has resulted in refund of 9s� 997,512�-�

  -urthermore, the *ompan` filed an appeal Iefore AT09 Ieing aggrie]ed ^ith the order 
of the *09�A� ^hich ^as heard on -eIruar` 21, 2023 and remanded IacR the Ioth 
appeals to the *09�A� through order dated April 26, 2023� The *09�A� has not initiated 
the remand IacR proceedings and pending for adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis 
of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (vi) The Additional *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �ºAd*09»� under section 122 of 0T6 2001 
]ide order dated 2022 in respect of tax `ear 2015, raised a demand of 9s 36�44 million 
on account of disallo^ance of certain expenditures under section 20 and section 21 of 
the 0ncome Tax 6rdinance 2001� The *ompan` filed appeal Iefore the *ommissioner 
0nland 9e]enue �Appeals�, ^hich has Ieen decided against the *ompan` ]ide order 
dated 6ctoIer 14, 2021� )eing aggrie]ed, the *ompan` filed an appeal Iefore the 
/onoraIle Appellate TriIunal, ̂ hich is pending adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis 
of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (vii) The Additional *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �ºAd*09»� under section 122�9� of 0T6 
2001 ]ide order dated August 24, 2022 in respect of tax ̀ ear 2017, issued a sho^ cause 
notice through ^hich the *ompan` ^as reXuired to furnish details of ]arious re]enue 
and capital nature expenditure along ^ith the documentar` e]idence� The *ompan` 
suImitted repl` on due date along ̂ ith the reXuisitie details and documents �The Ad*09 
in response to repl` suImitted passed an order dated +ececemIer 07, 2022 creating 
alleged principal demand of 9s� 64�89 million� )eing aggrei]ed, the *ompan` filed an 
appeal Iefore the *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� �*09-A��The appeal Iefore 
*09 �A� has Ieen heard and conseXuent to the appeal, *09�A� has passed an order on 
4a` 23, 2023� The *09�A� has mainl` remanded IacR the case to the assessing oѝcer� 
)eing aggrie]ed ^ith the order of the *09 �A�, the *ompan` preferred an appeal Iefore 
the AT09 on legal grounds ^hich is not fixed for hearing `et� The *ompan` on the Iasis 
of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�
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 (viii) The *ompan` recei]ed the sho^ cause notice under section 161 �1A� of the 0T6, 2001 
dated 4a` 18, 2023 through ^hich the *ompan` ^as reXuired to furnish detail of 
pa`ments made under ]arious heads along ^ith documentar` e]idence� 7reparation of 
the reXuisite detail is in process due to ^hich the repl` is not suImitted `et� The legal 
ad]isor of the *ompan` is of the ]ie^ that an` financial exposure cannot Ie commented 
at this stage� The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of 
fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

  The 4anagement and taxation expert of the *ompan` Ielie]es that there are meritorious 
grounds to defend the aIo]e mentioned demands relating to the respecti]e cases, 
conseXuentl ,̀ no pro]ision has Ieen recorded in these financial statements ̂ ith respect 
to the aIo]e matters�

 24�1�2 :ales tax

  -ollo^ing are the ]arious contingencies relating to :ales Tax matters!

 (i) The +eput` *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �º+*09»� raised a demand of 9s� 8�03 million 
on account of short sales tax ^ithheld as ^ithholding agent, excess input claimed and 
short output tax declaration ]ide order dated 1une 30, 2014� The *ompan` filed an 
appeal Iefore *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� ^hich ^as partiall` decided in 
fa]or of the *ompan`  ]ide order dated :eptemIer 11, 2015 resulting in reduction of 
demand to 9s 3�86m�

  )eing aggrie]ed the *ompan` has filed an appeal Iefore Appellate TriIunal 0nland 
9e]enue �ºAT09»�, against the demand of 9s� 3�86 million as confirmed I` *09�A�, ^hich 
is pending adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is 
hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (ii) The +eput` *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �º+*09»� raised a demand of 9s� 16�47 
million along ^ith a penalt` of 9s� 16�37 million on account of input tax claimed on 
in]oices issued I` IlacRlisted ]endors, inadmissiIle input tax claimed and non pa`ment 
of further tax ]ide order dated 1ul` 30, 2019� The *ompan` filed an appeal Iefore 
*ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals� ^hich ^as partiall` decided in fa]or of the 
*ompan` ]ide order dated 5o]emIer 11, 2019 resulting in reduction of demand to 
9s� 2�03 million ^ith the penalt` Ieing recalculated at the time of the appeal eќect 
and certain matters ^ere remanded IacR� )eing aggrie]ed, the *ompan` has filed 
an appeal Iefore Appellate TriIunal 0nland 9e]enue �ºAT09»�� The honoraIle AT09 has 
remanded IacR the case to +*09 through order dated 4a` 17, 2022�

  -urthermore, +*09 initiated the remand IacR proceedings and issued order on 1une 
30, 2021 creating a demand of 9s� 2�68 million including default surcharge� The 
*ompan` filed an appeal Iefore *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals�, ^hich ^as 
partiall` decided in fa]or of the *ompan` ]ide order dated 6ctoIer 11, 2021� )eing 
aggrie]ed, the *ompan`  filed an appeal Iefore Appellate TriIunal 0nland 9e]enue 
�ºAT09»� against the remaining amount of 9s� 1�51 million, ^hich ^as remanded IacR for 
fresh proceedings ]ide order dated 4a` 17, 2022 ^hich are still pending� The *ompan` 
on the Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�  
    

 (iii) -urthermore, +*09 initiated the remand IacR proceedings and issued order on 1une 
30, 2021 creating a demand of 9s� 2�68 million including default surcharge� The 
*ompan` filed an appeal Iefore *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �Appeals�, ^hich ^as 
partiall` decided in fa]or of the *ompan` ]ide order dated 6ctoIer 11, 2021� )eing 
aggrie]ed, the *ompan`  filed an appeal Iefore Appellate TriIunal 0nland 9e]enue 
�ºAT09»� against the remaining amount of 9s� 1�51 million, ^hich ^as remanded IacR for 
fresh proceedings ]ide order dated 4a` 17, 2022 ^hich are still pending� The *ompan` 
on the Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case� 
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 (iv) The +eput` *ommissioner 0nland 9e]enue �º+*09»� has  issued a notice dated +ecemIer 
08, 2022 through ̂ hich intention ̂ as sho^n to reco]er the penalt` and default surcharge 
on account of late pa`ment of sales tax liaIilit �̀ 0n response to order the *ompan` 
suImitted the reXuisities details and documents� /o^e]er, the +eput` *ommissioner 
0nland 9e]enue �+*09� passed an order dated +ecemIer 16, 2022, created an allged 
demand of 9s� 0�76 million�

  )eing aggrie]ed the *ompan` filed an appeal Iefore the *09�A�� The *09�A� has passed 
the order dated 4arch 30, 2023, through ^hich *09�A� has confirmed the amount of 
9s� 0�402 million pertaining to the penalt` and refer the remaining amount of 9s� 0�365 
million, pertaining to default surcharge, to -)9 to recalculate the same at the time of 
reco]er �̀ )eing aggrie]ed ^ith the order of the *09�A�, *ompan` has filed an appeal 
Iefore AT09 ^hich is pending for adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of 
the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�  

 (v) The *ompan` recei]ed a sho^ cause notice dated 4a` 02, 2023 through ^hich the 
+*09 has sho^n intention to reco]er penalt` amounting to 9s� 12�64 million- under 
section 33�5� 
 33�21� and default of 9s� 0�69 million under section 34�1��a� of the :ales 
Tax Act, 1990� 0n response, the *ompan` suImitted the reXuisite details and documents 
^hereas, the order of +*09 is still pending� /o^e]er, as per the tax ad]isor of the 
*ompan` an` financial exposure in this respect cannot Ie commented at this stage� 
The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of the tax ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome 
of the case�

  The 4anagement and taxation expert of the *ompan` Ielie]es that there are meritorious 
grounds to defend the aIo]e mentioned demands relating to the respecti]e cases, 
conseXuentl ,̀ no pro]ision has Ieen recorded in these financial statements ^ith respect 
to the aIo]e matters�

 24�1�3 6thers

 (i) The +ohler 7aRistan �plaintiќ� has filed a petition on 1anuar` 02, 2023 Iefore :enior *i]il 
*ourt, Lahore against the 110 Traders � 7ri]ate� Limited �+efendants� and the *ompan` 
that the` ha]e failed to manufacture � produce tomato pulp to the reXuired demand and 
ha]e Ieen unaIle to hand o]er the produced tomato pulp to the plaintiќ, therefore, the 
plaintiќ should Ie compensated for their loss in the form of damages� The *ompan` has 
suImitted in the *ourt that +ohler 7aRistan ne]er executed an` agreement or *ontract 
^ith the *ompan ,̀ an` contract Iet^een +ohler 7aRistan and 110 Traders �7ri]ate� 
limited ̂ as a Iilateral contract ̂ hich doesn»t Iind or enforce an` rights on the *ompan �̀ 
The suit is pending for adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of the legal 
ad]isor is hopeful of fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (ii) +r� AIdul 9auf s�o 4uhammad @aXooI �plantiќ�, has filed a petition Iefore :enior *i]il 
*ourt on +ecemIer 09, 2023 against the *ompan` �defendant� that his grandfather 
had ]ast land properties that currentl` occupied I` the defendant� The suit is pending 
for adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of the legal ad]isor is hopeful of 
fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (iii) +uring the `ear 2023, one of the ex emplo`ee filed suit Iefore :indh /igh *ourt, 2arachi 
against the *ompan` on his termination from ser]ices� /e has claimed damages of 9s 
25 million ^ith 15� marRup from the date of his termination� The suit is pending for 
adQudication� The *ompan` on the Iasis of opinion of the legal ad]isor is hopeful of 
fa]oraIle outcome of the case�

 (iv) Letter of guarantee in fa]or of :ui 5orthern .as 7ipelines Limited  on account of pa`ment 
of dues against gas consumption amounting to 9s� 17�20 million � 2022! 9s� 17�20 
million��

 (v) The *ompan` has issued postdated cheXues amounting to 9s 126�14 million �2022! 
9s 80�59 million� to *ollector of *ustoms Lahore +r` 7ort on account of taxaIle dut` 
^hich might Iecome pa`aIle against +ut` and Tax 9emission on ,xport under :96 
 
492 �0��2009 dated 1une 13, 2009 and :96 
 450 �0��2001 dated 1une 30, 2001 under 
*ustoms 9ules 2001�
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 24.2 Commitments 

 (i) Letters of credit for purchase of raw and packing materials Rs 31.59 million (2022: Rs 
36.32 million).

 (ii) The *ompan` has entered into operating lease agreements, including 0Qara financing 
agreement with Bank Al Habib Limited in order to obtain vehicles for employees. The 
amount of future payments under ijarah and the period in which these payments will 
become due are as follows:     
    

     June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees

  Not later than one year   3,54,251   2,708,050 
  Later than one `ear 5ot later than fi]e `ear   -   310,000 
  3,54,251 3,018,050 
 

25. REVENUE    
    
  Local   3,189,920,803   3,026,972,834 
  Export   514,323,111   434,624,738 
    
     3,704,243,914   3,461,597,572
 
 Less! :ales tax - on local sales   431,594,892   416,508,554 
 Sales returns, trade discounts and incentives   547,718,132   555,798,007 

     (979,313,024)  (972,306,561)
   
    2,724,930,890   2,489,291,011  

 
 25.1 All the revenue is recognized at a point in time. 

 25.2 The Company’s revenue based on geographical location is given as under:   
 . 

 Pakistan   2,210,607,779   2,054,666,273 
 Canada   168,586,135  125,607,911 
 United Arab Emirates   102,181,718   122,668,041 
 United States of America   80,541,155   29,784,511 
 Kingdom of Saudi Arabia   72,528,555   44,126,621 
 Europe   66,243,688   80,613,234 
 Others   24,241,860   31,824,420 

     2,724,930,890   2,489,291,011 
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees
26. COST OF SALES   
    
 Raw and packing materials consumed 26.1  1,656,181,975   1,848,621,733 
 :alaries, ^ages and other Ienefits 26�2  226,402,498   220,916,511 
 Ijarah rentals   812,456   1,092,365 
 Boiler expenses   30,663,235   50,691,465 
 Freight and octroi   1,224,588   2,215,962 
 Travelling and vehicle running   5,639,901   4,843,417 
 Repairs and maintenance   4,986,506   34,524,546 
 Power, water and gas   89,479,397   80,494,841 
 Insurance   2,670,862   3,507,512 
 Rent, rates and taxes   3,990,451   2,492,357 
 Dairy expenses   -     10,237,705 
 -inished goods ^ritten oќ   55,482,107   8,444,200 
 Provision for slow moving raw materials of goods   23,465,231   2,422,822 
 Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 4.1.1  45,465,538   41,714,312 
 Amortization of intangible assets 5.1.1  63,960   12,112 
 Other expenses   9,958,391   24,040,029 

     2,156,487,096   2,336,271,889 
 Work in process   
 Opening stock   92,569,218   52,978,614 
 Closing stock   (180,241,135)  (92,569,218)

     (87,671,917)  (39,590,604)

 Cost of goods manufactured   2,068,815,179   2,296,681,285 
   
 Finished goods   
 Opening stock   156,706,393   155,495,740 
 Closing stock   (148,706,888)  (156,706,393)

     7,999,505   (1,210,653)

     2,076,814,684   2,295,470,632

 26.1 This included certain stocks in trade that have been written down to their net realizable
  value by Rs. 79.34 million in year 2022

 26.2 This includes 9s� 18�71 million �2022! 9s� 16�69 million� in respect of staќ retiremen
  Ienefits�     
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  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees
   �9e-arranged�
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES     

 
 :alaries, ^ages and other Ienefits 27�1  94,891,761   131,132,754 
 0Qarah rentals   759,535   864,831 
 Tra]elling and ]ehicle running   10,270,769   8,490,423 
 ,ntertainment   3,724,516   4,004,080 
 9epairs and maintenance   2,531,295   3,403,486 
 0nsurance   7,900,656   7,268,857 
 9ent, rates and taxes   20,471,926   18,994,080 
 7o^er, ^ater and gas   6,130,367   7,380,585 
 7rinting and stationer`   2,217,584   3,233,952 
 7ostage and telephone expenses   2,343,164   1,771,262 
 7rofessional ser]ices   10,479,783   13,479,919 
 0T and related ser]ices   9,985,145   7,058,947 
 Auditors» remuneration 27�2  3,169,830   3,250,485 
 +epreciation on propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment 4�1�1  8,700,263   12,487,212 
 Amortiaation of intangiIle assets 5�1�1  2,019,379   580,917 
 6ther expenses   2,202,175   4,476,208 
   
    187,798,148   227,877,998 

  27.1 This includes 9s� 10�72 million �2022! 9s� 9�55 million� in 
  respect of staќ retirement Ienefits�

 27.2 Auditors’ remuneration   
     
  Audit fee   1,903,330   1,903,330 
  /alf `earl` re]ie^ fee   786,500   786,500 
  6ut of pocRet expenses   150,000   230,655 
    2,839,830   2,920,485
  *ertification fee  330,000 330,000
    3,169,830 3,250,485

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees  
   �9e-arranged�
28. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES   
      
 :alaries, ^ages and other Ienefits 28�1  101,722,986   107,228,260 
 0Qarah rentals   1,731,089   3,990,110 
 Tra]elling and ]ehicle running   31,247,299   25,078,909 
 ,ntertainment   1,491,323   7,257,781 
 -reight expenses   
 - Local    28,286,701   48,130,445 
 - ,xport     41,157,238   36,754,807 
 Ad]ertisement   33,416,934   180,996,804 
 :elling and related expenses   189,014,933   121,309,621 
 7rofessional ser]ices   3,438,316   3,822,888 
 0T and related ser]ices   4,181,534   3,928,108 
 9epairs and maintenance   284,715   194,320 
 0nsurance    1,097,293   957,942 
 9ent, rates and taxes   3,523,348   2,475,223 
 7o^er, ^ater and gas   545,693   715,483 
 7rinting and stationer`   230,199   717,906 
 7ostage and telephone   2,035,512   1,907,539 
 +epreciation on propert ,̀ plant and eXuipment 4�1�1  1,013,299   696,788 
 Amortiaation of intangiIle assets 5�1�1  460,238   87,154 
     444,878,650   546,250,088  
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 28.1 This includes 9s� 11�79 million �2022! 9s� 11�32 million� in respect of staќ retirement 

Ienefits�    
  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees
   (9e-arranged�
29. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES   

 Allo^ance for douItful deIts   28,814,501   13,455,178 
 7ro]ision for douItful ad]ances   4,675,095   -   
 9ecei]aIle Ialances ^ritten oќ   25,061,668   3,398,828 
 ,xchange loss   5,402,659   -   
 +onations   -     30,500 

    63,953,923   16,884,506

30. FINANCE COST   

 4arR-up on   
 -  Long term finances - secured   324,404   2,216,725 
 -  -inances under marR up arrangements -secured   52,289,110   23,486,033 
 -  Loan from related parties - unsecured   26,305,287   4,528,164 
 0nterest on ^orRers» �profit� participation fund   -     110,363 
 )anR and other charges   6,164,356   6,639,346
 
    85,083,157   36,980,631
 
 
    2,295,470,632   1,721,279,887 

31. OTHER INCOME   

 :crap sales   13,292,470   12,668,474 
 .ain on disposal of fixed assets   7,390,884   3,352 
 ,xcess liaIilities ^ritten IacR   80,853,444   -   
 .ain on disposal of Iiological assets   -     3,836,000 
 ,xchange gain   -     21,994,428 
 .ain on re]aluation of trees   894,402   50,000 
 Amortiaation of deferred income 18�2  358,679   398,532 
 Amortiaation of deferred grant 17  125,297   1,690,697 
 0ncome on sa]ing account   1,309,191   567,365 
 6thers   3,461,049   6,786,188
 
    107,685,416   47,995,036 
32. TAXATION   

 *urrent tax   
 - *harge for the current `ear   33,091,451   32,217,422 
 - AdQustment for prior `ear   196,426   �1,117,254�
   
 +eferred tax   �2,837�  4,699,063
 
    33,285,040   35,799,231

 32.1 The provision for current taxation represents tax under final tax regime and minimum tax on 

turnover under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Minimum tax under section 

113 is available for set off for five years against normal tax liability arising in future years, 

whereas tax under final tax regime is not available for set off against normal tax liability 

arising in future years.  
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 32.2 The Company has recognized minimum tax at 1.25% and in case of export at 1% of export 

proceeds therefor no tax reconciliation has been given.   

 

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees
  
33. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED     

 5et loss for the `ear attriIutaIle to
  ordinar` shareholders  9upees   �59,197,296�  �621,977,039�
 
 >eighted a]erage numIer of ordinar`
  shares outstanding during the `ear   5umIer   22,875,000   22,875,000 

 Loss per share - )asic  9upees   �2�59�  �27�19�
       

33.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as the Company

  has no such commitments that would result in dilution of earnings of the Company.

34. LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

  The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:    

  

  - *redit risR    
  - LiXuidit` risR      

 - 4arRet risR � including currenc` risR, interest rate risR and other price risR�   
     

  The *ompan`»s o]erall risR management polic` focuses on the unpredictaIilit` of
  financial marRets and seeRs to minimiae potential ad]erse eќects on the *ompan`»s
  financial performance�

 34.1 Risk management framework
       

 The )oard of +irectors has o]erall responsiIilit` for estaIlishment and o]ersight of the
  *ompan`»s risR management frame^orR� The audit committee is responsiIle for
  de]eloping and monitoring the *ompan`»s risR management policies� The committee
  regularl` meets and an` changes and compliance issues are reported to the )oard of
  +irectors�

  9isR management s`stems are re]ie^ed regularl` I` the audit committee to reÅect
  changes in marRet conditions and the *ompan`»s acti]ities� The *ompan ,̀ throug   

 its training and management standards and procedures, aims to de]elop a disciplined
  and constructi]e control en]ironment in ^hich all emplo`ees understand their roles and
  oIligations�

  The audit committee o]ersees compliance I` management ^ith the *ompan`»s risR
  management policies and procedures, and re]ie^s the adeXuac` of the risR management
  frame^orR in relation to the risRs faced I` the *ompan �̀

 34.2 Credit risk

  *redit risR represents the risR that one part` to a financial instrument ^ill cause a financial
  loss for the other part` I` failing to discharge an oIligation� *redit risR arises from amounts
  recei]aIle from customers of the *ompan ,̀ deposits ^ith IanRs and other recei]aIles� 
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  The management has a credit polic` in place and exposure to credit risR is monitore
  on a continuous Iasis� *redit e]aluations are performed on all customers reXuiring credit
  o]er a certain amount� The *ompan` does not reXuire collateral in respect of financial
  assets� The *ompan` does not ha]e significant exposure to an` indi]idual counterpart �̀
  To manage credit risR the *ompan` maintains procedures co]ering the application for
  credit appro]als, granting and rene^al of counterpart` limits and monitoring of exposures
  against these limits� As part of these processes the financial ]iaIilit` of all counterparties  

 is regularl` monitored and assessed�

  Exposure to credit risk     
 

  The carr`ing amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure� The
  maximum exposure to credit risR at the reporting date ^as!

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees

  Trade deIts  249,762,573   202,059,716 
  Less! Allo^ance for expected credit losses �,*L�     

    (57,908,180)  (29,093,679)
       

    191,854,393  172,966,037 
  )anR Ialances   21,312,106   21,624,400 
       

    405,020,892   367,556,474

  Credit	quality	of	financial	assets	 	 	 	
 

  *redit Xualit` of financial assets is assessed I` reference to external credit ratings, ^here
  a]ailaIle, or to historical information aIout counterpart` default rates All counterparties,   

 ^ith the exception of customers, ha]e external credit ratings determined I` ]arious 
  credit rating agencies� *redit Xualit` of customers is assessed I` reference to historical   

 defaults rates and present ages�     
      
 The aging of trade deIts as at the reporting date is as follo^s!

  5ot due   50,029,396   116,089,781 
  7ast due  1 -  30 da`s   56,468,795   47,290,651 
  7ast due 31 - 60 da`s   11,060,265   8,479,875 
  7ast due 61 - 90 da`s   8,350,371   19,439,674 
  7ast due 91 - 180 da`s   33,634,140   13,247,571 
  7ast due 181 - 365 da`s   45,875,955   11,434,035 
  4ore than 366 da`s   44,343,651   15,171,808 

     249,762,573   231,153,395 

  The *ompan`»s exposure relating to credit risR relating to trade deIt is disclosed in
  rele]ant notes to the financial statement� There are no significant trade deIts that are
  past due as at the reporting date�

  The credit Xualit` of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can I
  assessed I` reference to external credit ratings �if a]ailaIle� or to historical information
  aIout counterpart` default rate!     

     
       

   



85

 
                       Credit ratings    2023 2022
    Short term Long term Agency (Rupees) (Rupees)
      
  5ational )anR of 7aRistan A1� AAA 7A*9A  1,739,244   1,739,244 
  4*) )anR Limited A1� AAA 7A*9A  1,859,352   787,333 
  /aIiI )anR Limited A1� AAA 1*9-=0:  17,694,685   17,146,143 
  )anR Al /aIiI A1� AAA 7A*9A  18,825   779,659 
  4eeaan )anR Limited A1� AAA 1*9-=0:  -     1,072,019 
  -a`sal )anR Limited A1� AA 7A*9A  -     100,002 
       
        21,312,106   21,624,400

  +ue to the *ompan`»s long standing Iusiness relationships ^ith these counterparties and after 
gi]ing due consideration to their strong financial standing, the management does not expect non-
performance I` these counter parties on their oIligations to the *ompan �̀ Accordingl ,̀ the credit 
risR is minimal�

 34.3  Liquidity risk

  LiXuidit` risR is the risR that an entit` ^ill encounter diѝcult` in meeting oIligations associated 
^ith financial liaIilities� The *ompan` manages liXuidit` risR I` maintaining suѝcient cash and the 
a]ailaIilit` of funding through an adeXuate amount of committed credit facilities� As at reporting 
date, the *ompan` had 9s� 360 million �2022! 9s� 360 million� a]ailaIle Iorro^ing limits from 
financial institutions Bunutiliaed! 9s� 58 million �2022! 9s� 25�94 million�D and 9s� 21�31 million �2022 
9s� 21�62  million� cash and IanR Ialances� -ollo^ing are the contractual maturities of financial 
liaIilities!

 *ontractual maturities of financial liaIilities as at 1une 30, 2023!

  *arring   *ontractual   >ithin  1-2     2-5    4ore
  Amount   *ash Åo^s   1 @ear  @ears     @ears    than 5
  9upees   9upees   9upees  9upees     9upees    9upees
 -inances under marRup 
 arrangements - secured  302,002,267   302,002,267   302,002,267   -     -     -   
 Trade and other pa`aIles  587,276,466   587,276,466   587,276,466   -     -     -   
 Accrued finance cost  47,309,572   47,309,572   47,309,572   -     -     -   
 Loan from shareholders - unsecured  316,000,000   316,000,000   316,000,000   -     -     -   
   1,252,588,305   1,252,588,305   1,252,588,305   -     - -
 
  The contractual cash Åo^s relating to the aIo]e financial liaIilities ha]e Ieen determined on the 

Iasis of interest rates � marR up rates eќecti]e as at the reporting date� The rates of interest � marR 
up ha]e Ieen disclosed in rele]ant notes to these financial statements�

 *ontractual maturities of financial liaIilities as at 1une 30, 2022!

  *arring   *ontractual   >ithin  1-2     2-5    4ore
  Amount   *ash Åo^s   1 @ear  @ears     @ears    than 5
  9upees   9upees   9upees  9upees     9upees    9upees

 Long term finance - secured  14,949,499   15,000,000   15,000,000   -     -     -   
 -inances under marRup       
 arrangements - secured  341,059,804   341,059,804   341,059,804   -     -     -   
 Trade and other pa`aIles  668,083,500   668,083,500   668,083,500   -     -     -   
 Accrued finance cost  12,848,666   12,848,666   12,848,666   -     -     -   
 Loan from shareholders - unsecured  225,000,000   225,000,000   225,000,000   -     -     -   
   1,261,941,469   1,261,991,970   1,261,991,970   -     -     -   
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 34.4 Market risk
  
 (i) Currency risk

  *urrenc` risR is the risR that the fair ]alue or future cash Åo^s of a financial instrument ^ill
  Åuctuate Iecause of changes in foreign exchange rates� *urrenc` risR arises mainl` from
  future commercial transactions or recei]aIles and pa`aIles that exist due to transactions
  in foreign currencies� 

  The *ompan` is exposed to currenc` risR arising from ]arious currenc` exposures,
  primaril` ^ith respect to the <nited :tates +ollar �<:+�� *urrentl ,̀ the *ompan`»s foreign
  exchange risR exposure is restricted to the amounts recei]aIle�pa`aIle from�to the
  foreign entities� The *ompan`»s exposure to currenc` risR at the reporting date is as
  follo^s!

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees

 Trade deIts - unsecured   66,061,514   45,120,000
 
 The follo^ing significant exchange rates ^ere
  applied during the `ear9upees per <:+

 9upees per <:+
 A]erage rate  246�38 190�60
 9eporting date rate  287�90 204�85

 :ensiti]it` anal`sis     
 

  0f the functional currenc ,̀ at reporting date, had ^eaRened � strengthened I` 1� against
  the <:+ ^ith all other ]ariaIles held constant, the impact on profit Iefore taxation for the
  `ear ^ould ha]e Ieen 9s� 0�661 million �2022! 9s�  0�451 million� respecti]el` lo^er
  � higher, mainl` as a result of exchange losses � gains on translation of foreign exchange
  denominated financial instruments� This sensiti]it` anal`sis reÅects exposure as at the
  reporting date and is unrepresentati]e of the exposure during the `ear

 (ii) Price risk 

  7rice risR represents the risR that the fair ]alue or future cash Åo^s of a financial instrument
  ^ill Åuctuate Iecause of changes in marRet prices �other than those arising from interes
  rate risR or currenc` risR�, ^hether those changes are caused I` factors specific to the
  indi]idual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors aќecting all similar financial
  instruments traded in the marRet� The *ompan` is not exposed to eXuit` price risR� 

 (iii) 0nterest rate risR 

  0nterest rate risR represents the risR that the fair ]alue or future cash Åo^s of a financial
  instrument ^ill Åuctuate Iecause of changes in marRet interest rates�     

   
  The *ompan`»s interest rate risR arises from long term and short term Iorro^ings
  )orro^ings oItained at ]ariaIle rates expose the *ompan` to cash Åo^ interest rate
  risR�     
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 At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the *ompan`»s interest Iearing financial

  instruments ^as!    
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees
 
  -ixed rate instruments - -inancial liaIilities
    
  Loan from shareholders - interest Iearing   -     (75,000,000)
    
  -loating rate instruments - -inancial assets
  
  )anR Ialances - sa]ings account  16,563,311   11,409,980 
      
  -loating rate instruments - -inancial liaIilities
  
  Loan from shareholders - interest Iearing   166,000,000   - 
    Long term finances - secured   -     14,949,499 
  -inances under marRup arrangements   302,002,267   341,059,804 
       

 *ash Åo^ sensiti]it` anal`sis for ]ariaIle rate instruments

  0f interest rates on Åoating rate instruments, at the reporting date, Åuctuate I` 1� higher
  � lo^er ̂ ith all other ]ariaIles held constant, profit Iefore taxation for the ̀ ear ̂ ould ha]e
  Ieen 9s� 4�51 million �2022! 9s 3�45 million� lo^er � higher, mainl` as a result of  higher
  lo^er interest expense on Åoating rate Iorro^ings�

 34.5 Market risk

  -air ]alue is an amount for ^hich an asset could Ie exchanged, or a liaIilit` settled,
  Iet^een Rno^ledgeaIle ^illing parties in an arm»s length transaction� *onseXuentl ,̀
  diќerences ma` arise Iet^een the carr`ing ]alue and the fair ]alue estimates� 

 
 As at the reporting date, the net fair ]alue of all financial assets and financial liaIilities are

  estimated to approximate their carr`ing ]alues� 
 
 -inancial assets ^hich are tradaIle in an open marRet are re]alued at the marRet

  pricespre]ailing on the reporting date� The fair ]alues of all other financial assets and
  liaIilities are not considered to Ie significantl` diќerent from their carr`ing ]alues�

  The *ompan` classifies the financial instruments measured in the statement of financial 
position at fair ]alue in accordance ^ith the follo^ing fair ]alue measurement hierarch`!

  Le]el 1  8uoted marRet prices   
  Le]el 2 =aluation techniXues �marRet oIser]aIle�   

 Le]el 3  =aluation techniXues �non marRet oIser]aIle�

  The *ompan` is not exposed to an` significant fair ]alue risR at reporting date�
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 Fair value 
through 

profit	or	loss

 At 
amortized 

cost	

 At fair value 
through other 
comprehensive	

income 

Total

	9upees	 	9upees	 	9upees	 	9upees	

 34.�	 Financial	instruments	by
	 	 	categories

	 	 Financial	assets	as	at	
  June 30, 2023    
 
  Trade debts - unsecured  -     191,854,393   -     191,854,393 
  Cash and bank balances  -     21,312,106   -     21,312,106 

    -     213,166,499   -     213,166,499 

 
 Fair value 

through 
profit	or	loss

 At 
amortized 

cost	

 At fair value 
through other 
comprehensive	

income 

Total

	9upees	 	9upees	 	9upees	 	9upees	

	 	 Financial	assets	as	at
   June 30, 2022    
 
  Trade debts - unsecured  -      202,059,716    -      202,059,716  
  Cash and bank balances  -      21,624,400    -      21,624,400  

    -      223,684,116    -     223,684,116   
      
     

  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
  9upees Rupees

  Financial liabilities at amortized cost

  Long term finance - secured   -     14,949,499 
  Trade and other payables   484,751,002   592,425,352 
  Finances under markup arrangements   302,002,267   341,059,804 
  Loan from related parties - unsecured   316,000,000   225,000,000 
  Accrued finance cost   47,309,572   12,848,666 
  Unclaimed dividends   1,912,754   1,912,754 
    
     1,151,975,595   1,188,196,075   
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34.6 Financial instruments by categories

  *arr`ing ]alues of all financial assets and liaIilities reÅected in these financial statements
  approximate to their fair ]alues� -air ]alue is determined on the Iasis of oIQecti]e
  e]idence at each reporting date�

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
  The Company’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability 

to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefit for 

other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

    
  The *ompan` manages its capital structure and maRes adQustments to it in the light of
  changes in economic conditions� To maintain or adQust the capital structure, the *ompan`
  ma` adQust the di]idend pa`ment to shareholders or issue ne^ shares or sell assets to
  reduce deIt�
  
  The management seeRs to maintain a Ialance Iet^een higher returns that might Ie
  possiIle ^ith higher le]els of Iorro^ings and the ad]antages and securit` aќorded I` a
  sound capital position� The *ompan` finances its operations through eXuit ,̀ Iorro^ings
  and management of ^orRing capital ^ith a ]ie^ to maintaining an appropriate mix
  Iet^een ]arious sources of finance to minimiae risR�

  0n line ^ith the norms of the industr ,̀ the *ompan` monitors capital on the Iasis of the
  gearing ratio� This ratio is calculated as net deIt di]ided I` total capital� 5et deIt is
  calculated as total Iorro^ings  less cash and cash eXui]alents� Total capital is calculated
  as eXuit` as sho^n in the statement of financial position plus net deIt� As at the reporting
  date, the gearing ratio of the *ompan` ^as ^orRed out as under! 

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees Rupees  

  

  Loan from related parties - unsecured   316,000,000   225,000,000 
  Long term finance   -     14,949,499 
  -inances under marRup arrangements   302,002,267   341,059,804 
  *ash and IanR Ialances   �21,312,106�  �21,624,400�
  5et deIt   596,690,161   559,384,903 
  Total eXuit`    143,746,063   202,936,414 
  Total capital emplo`ed   740,436,224   762,321,317 
  
  .earing ratio  81� 73�

36. OPERATING SEGMENTS  
 
  The financial information has Ieen prepared on the Iasis of a single reportaIle
  segment.

 36�1 The *ompan`»s re]enue from external customers I` geographical location is gi]en as
  under!     
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  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees Rupees 
    

  Pakistan  81.13% 82.54%
  Canada  6.19% 5.05%
  United Arab Emirates  3.75% 4.93%
  United States of America  2.96% 1.20%
  Kingdom of Saudi Arabia  2.66% 1.77%
  Europe  2.43% 3.24%
  Others  0.89% 1.28%

    100% 100.0%

 36.2 There is no individual customer to whom sales are more than 10% of total revenue 

 36.3 All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2023 are located in Pakistan.   

 

37. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION  
 
  The capacity of the plant is not determinable as it is a multi product plant capable of
  producing several interchangeable products.
 
  June 30, June 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees RupeeS 

  Actual production:
  Groceries & Confectioneries   1,212,880   1,793,222

38. PROVIDENT FUND    
  

 The Company doesn’t operate any provident fund for its permanent employees. However the 
Company operate gratuity scheme for its permanent employees.

39. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES  
 

 Chief Executive  Directors  Executives Total

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Rupees

Managerial remuneration  2,283,870   9,019,350   -     -     54,201,260   53,075,394   56,485,130   62,094,744 
9etirement Ienefits  -     -     -     -     18,027,283   19,463,636   18,027,283   19,463,636 
House rent allowance  1,027,740   4,058,702   -     -     24,390,555   23,883,931   25,418,295   27,942,633 
Utilities   228,390   901,948   100,206   389,947   5,420,036   5,307,649   5,748,632   6,599,544 
Car allowance  459,000   1,377,000   -     -     6,670,339   5,765,000   7,129,339   7,142,000 
Meeting fee  -     -     850,000   175,000   -     -     850,000   175,000
 
   3,999,000   15,357,000   950,206   564,947   108,709,473   107,495,610   113,658,679   123,417,557 
        
Number of persons 1 1 8 8 22 22 31 31
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  39�1 An ,xecuti]e is defined as an emplo`ee, other than the *hief ,xecuti]e and +irectors,
  ^hose Iasic salar` exceeds 9s� 1�2 million in a financial `ear�
   
 39�2 The *hief ,xecuti]e and emplo`ees are entitled to reimIursement of medical expenses
  as per the limits defined in the *ompan`»s polic �̀ 
 39�3 The *ompan` also pro]ides certain emplo`ees ^ith free use of *ompan` maintained
  cars�

40� 9,*65*0L0AT065 6- 46=,4,5T: 6- L0A)0L0T0,: T6 *A:/ -L6>: A90:05. -964 
-05A5*05. A*T0=0T0,:

As at 1une 
30,2022

Non-cash

 changes

Cash flows

-net

As at June

30, 2023

Long term finances -

secured

 14,949,499  50,501   (15,000,000) -

Loan from related

parties - unsecured

 225,000,000 -  91,000,000  316,000,000

Finances under markup

arrangements 

 

 341,059,804  -  (39,057,537)  302,002,267

Total liabilities from

financing activities 

 

 581,009,303  50,501   36,942,463  618,002,267  

 

As at 1une 
30,2021

Non-cash

 changes

Cash flows

-net

As at June

30, 2022

Long term finances -

secured

 43,408,390  1,541,109   (30,000,000) 14,949,499

Loan from related

parties - unsecured

 150,000,000 -  75,000,000  225,000,000

Finances under markup

arrangements 

 

 134,393,274  -  206,666,530  341,059,804

Total liabilities from

financing activities 

 

 327,801,664  1,541,109   251,666,530  581,009,303  
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41. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES   
    
 Related parties comprise associated company due to common directorship, directors and key 

management personnel. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions 
with various related parties. The Company enters into transactions with related parties on the 
Iasis of mutuall` agreed terms� :ignificant Ialances and transactions ̂ ith related parties are as 
follows:  

    Related       Basic of       Aggregate   June 30, June 30,
   party  Relationship   Shareholding   2023 2022
       (Rupees) (Rupees)
      
  Mr. Najam Aziz Sethi   Chief Executive     0.0063%   Obtained   31,000,000     50,000,000   

    loan

      Loan repaid 15,000,000 -  

      Finance 11,948,152 3,804,040  
    cost 

  

  Mr. S.M. Mehdi Mohsin   Director    20.4150%   Purchase   586,457       3,318,091   
    of goods

      Rent paid  3,847,809   3,498,014 

      Expenses  1,233,990   1,565,627   
    incurred on 

    their behalf

  Ms. Syeda Maimanat Mohsin    Spouse of     20.4200%  Purchase  -      45,360    
  Director  of goods

      Loan obtained   5,000,000  -  

      Loan repaid 5,000,000  -  
     

    Related       Basic of       Aggregate   June 30, June 30,
   party  Relationship   Shareholding   2023 2022
       (Rupees) (Rupees)
 
 4s� :`eda 4atanat .haќar   :pouse of    20�2060�   Loan     40,000,000         25,000,000   

  Director  Obtained

      Finance cost   9,275,596     678,137  

 Ms.Mira Sethi    Close relative    N/A Loan   35,000,000       -   
  of Chief   Obtained

    Executive 
      Finance   5,081,539   -  

    cost

 M/s. Vanguard Books      Associated Company   N/A Rent    20,032,941       17,647,060  
 (Private) Limited due to common  expense 20,032,941 17,647,060
    directorship
      Rent paid    20,032,941     17,647,060   

    cost
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  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
  Rupees 9upees

  Balances outstanding as at June 30, 
  Loans from directors � close relati]e - unsecured   

 
  4r� 5aQam Aaia :ethi   66,000,000   50,000,000 
  4s� 4ira :ethi   35,000,000   -   
  4s� :`eda 4atanat .haќar   140,000,000   100,000,000 
  4s� :`eda 4aimant 4ohsin   75,000,000   75,000,000

  Accrued	finance	cost 

  4r� 5aQam Aaia :ethi   15,752,192   3,804,040 
  4s� :`eda 4atanat .haќar   9,953,733   678,137
  4s� 4ira :ethi   5,081,539   - 

           6ther recei]aIle - 4r� :�4� 4ehdi 4ohsin  347,101   110,452

  :ecurit` deposit - 4�s� =anguard )ooRs �7ri]ate� 
  Limited  3,600,000   3,600,000

 41�1 The *ompan` also pro]ides certain emplo`ees ^ith free use of *ompan` maintained
  cars�

 41�2 :ales and purchase transactions ha]e Ieen carried out on commercial terms and    
 conditions under comparaIle uncontrolled price method�

  June 30, 1une 30,
  2023 2022
 Note Rupees 9upees

42. SHARIAH SCREENING DISCLOSURES   

  
 Loans � ad]ances oItained as per 0slamic mode   -     -   
 :hariah compliant IanR deposits � IanR Ialances   -     -   
 7rofit earned from shariah compliant IanR 
 deposits � IanR Ialances   -     -   
 9e]enue earned from a shariah compliant
  Iusiness segment   -     -   
 .ain � loss or di]idend earned from shariah 
 compliant in]estments   -     -   
 :hariah compliant exchange gain earned   -     -   
 4arR up paid on 0slamic mode of financing   -     -   
 7rofits earned on an` con]entional loan or ad]ance   -     -   
 0nterest paid on an` con]entional loan or 
 ad]ance   50,571,750   24,846,239 

43. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

5umIer of emplo`ees as at 1une 30,  284 292
A]erage numIer of emplo`ees during the `ear 
   288 294
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44� *699,:765+05. -0.<9,:     
   

 *orresponding figures are rearranged � reclassified for Ietter presentation and comparison� 
-ollo^ing re-arrangements ha]e Ieen made in these financial statements that does not ha]e 
an` impact on the statement of financial position and profitaIilit` of the *ompan �̀

5ature                                     -rom                                 To                                                   2022
                                                                                                                   9upees
Statement	of	financial	position	 	
     
>ithholding income tax 0ncome tax reco]eraIle Trade and other pa`aIles  2,111,904 
                         �5ote 12�                           �5ote 21� 
   
:ecurit` deposit                      Ad]ances, deposits and   Ad]ances, deposits and  5,524,000
                         prepa`ments - others      prepa`ments - :ecurit`
                            deposit    
                         �5ote 11�                           �5ote 11�   
7romotional expenses              9efund liaIilities               Accrued liaIilities                         3,464,234 
                         �5ote 21� �5ote 21� 
Trade and other 7a`aIles        *ontract liaIilities                  :ecurit` deposit                     7,908,486 
                                       �5ote 21�                              �5ote 21� 
Statement	of	Profit	or	loss	 	
     
:elling and +istriIution            :elling and distriIution     :elling and distriIution                1,494,050
,xpenses                             expenses - others            expenses - :elling and          
                            related expenses       
                                               �5ote 28�                          �5ote 28�   
Ad]ertisement                         :elling and distriIution     :elling and distriIution                1,480,887
                                               expenses - others            expenses - Ad]ertisement
                                      �5ote 28�                           �5ote 28�   
,ntertainment expenses           Administrati]e expenses  Administrati]e expenses              1,096,416
                                               - professional ser]ices      - ,ntertainment    
                                               �5ote 27�                          �5ote 27�  
9epairs and maintenance         Administrati]e expenses   Administrati]e expenses            613,272 
                                               - professional ser]ices      - 9epairs and maintenance
                                               �5ote 27�                          �5ote 27� 
Auditor»s remuneration              Administrati]e expenses  Administrati]e expenses             3,250,485
                                               - professional ser]ices      -Auditor»s remuneration
                                               �5ote 27�                           �5ote 27� 
Ad]ances ^ritten oќ                 5et impairment loss on    6ther operating expenses          3,398,828
                                               financial assets                  - Assets ^ritten oќ   
                                                                                       �5ote 29� 
Allo^ance for                          5et impairment loss on    6ther operating expenses           13,455,178
douItful deIts                     financial assets                 - Allo^ance for douItful
                                                                                        deIts
                                                                                       �5ote 29� 
7rofessional expenses              Administrati]e expenses  Administrati]e expenses             7,058,947
                                               - professional :er]ices     - 0T and related ser]ices
                                               �5ote 27�                          �5ote 27� 
7rofessional expenses             :elling and distriIution     :elling and distriIution               3,928,108
                                               expenses - professional   expenses - 0T and
                                               :er]ices                           related ser]ices
                                               �5ote 28�                          �5ote 28� 

45� +AT, 6- A<T/690AAT065 -69 0::<,     
     

 These financial statements ^ere appro]ed and authoriaed I` the )oard of +irectors of the 
*ompan` for issue on 6ctoIer 10, 2023

				Badar	M.	Khan			 Najam	Aziz	Sethi		 Shazad	Ghaffar
*hief -inancial 6ѝcer *hief ,xecuti]e 6ѝcer  *hairman
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0�>e

of

Ieing a memIer of 4itchell»s -ruit -arms Limited, hereI` appoint

�5ame�
of

or failing him�her

�5ame�
of

another memIer of the *ompan ,̀ as m`�our prox` in m`�our aIsence to attend and ]ote for 
me�us and on m`�our Iehalf at the 91st Annual .eneral 4eeting of the *ompan` to Ie held on 
FFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFFat FFFFFFFFFF a�m� at the 9egistered 6ѝce of the *ompan` 
located at 72--**, .ulIerg 0=, Lahore�

:igned this da` of 2023

 7lease aѝx
 re]enue

 stamp

7lease Xuote folio numIer :ignature of 4emIer

IMPORTANT:
This instrument, appointing a prox ,̀ dul` completed, must Ie recei]ed at the 9egistered 6ѝce of the 
*ompan` located at 72--**, .ulIerg 0=, Lahore not later than 48 hours Iefore the scheduled time 
of the meeting�

Proxy Form 
Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited 
91th Annual General Meeting
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The *ompan` :ecretar`

Mitchell’s Fruit Farms Limited
72--**, .ulIerg 0=, Lahore�

A--0?
*699,*T
76:TA.,




